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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; however, the Board has up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking please speak into the microphone. We have a microphone in the center and one off to the side. I’d like to inform the public that the Members of the Board have all made site visits. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


ABSENT:  JOHN MC KELVEY

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 7:03 PM) 


RICHARD & LUCY MASERJIAN

27 WINTERGREEN AVE, NBGH







(67-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the right side yard setback and the maximum lot building coverage to build a rear addition on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant Richard and Lucy Maserjian.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on December 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on December 19th. The applicant sent out twenty-eight registered letters, twenty-eight were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.   

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Mr. Maserjian would you please step up to the microphone, one of the microphones. 

Mr. Maserjian: We wish to build a 12 ft x 22 ft addition to the rear of our house. It will only extend to the rear. We are not increasing the width of our house at all. We need this extra space because our daughters have grown up, we need closet space. Our clothes are all over the house. It’s simply too small. We don’t think this would impose on anybody in any way. It’s not obstructing anybody’s view and like I say we’re not increasing the width of our house but we need this additional room. We’ve got our computer that’s something new that is taking up space so we wish you would take this into consideration. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, you’re also building a deck off the back of the addition? Correct?

Mr. Maserjian: Yes. 

Ms. Eaton: This would be a family room?

Mr. Maserjian: Yes, it would be a family room. I know it won’t obstruct anybody’s view of the lake. 

Ms. Eaton: It’s only 1-story?

Mr. Maserjian: 1-story, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. If there are no further questions from the Board I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second the motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Maserjian: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:07 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007       (Resumption for decision:  9:56 PM)

RICHARD & LUCY MASERJIAN

27 WINTERGREEN AVE, NBGH







(67-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the right side yard setback and the maximum lot building coverage to build a rear addition on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On our first application, Richard and Lucy Maserjian and reading the report from the Orange County Department of Planning. 

In this case the proposed action to expand the existing will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concern s and they recommend Local Determination. 

This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: I didn’t really see anything that was not out of the ordinary that really jumped out at me as far as an issue with this particular applicant. 

Ms. Eaton: They are not increasing the size it’s going back towards the lake. And there weren’t any objections voiced from the public. 

Mr. Manley: I’d be willing to make a motion for approval.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.          (Time Noted – 9:58 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 


CAROL RICHARDSON 


481 LITTLE BRITAIN RD, NBGH







(97-1-34) R-3/O ZONE

Applicant is seeking a special use permit for an accessory apartment and area variances for the maximum allowed size of a main dwelling and the apartment shall not alter appearance of a dwelling. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Carol Richardson.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on December 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on December 19th. The applicant sent out sixteen registered letters, sixteen returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.   

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Freeman: My name is David Freeman. I am the architect representing Carol Richardson. I am here to request a Special Permit for an accessory apartment. As you may or may not know Carol’s husband died very recently and she wishes to remain in the house and have the family move in with her. It also requires a variance. The maximum allowed size is 25% and we’re right around 29% of the maximum dwelling. If you want me to walk you through it…what it does is reconstruct the existing garage to create a first floor space and then directly above the existing garage creates a bedroom space. So the footprint of the house doesn’t increase and if you’ve been to the house…

Chairperson Cardone: We have. 

Mr. Freeman: …the front roofline of the house actually extends a little bit more to the road. 

Ms. Eaton: How many bedrooms are in the house now?

Mr. Freeman: Right now there’s three and this will make the fourth bedroom. They have to do a septic analysis but that will come after your approval, before the Building Permit. 

Ms. Drake: Has soils been done to know whether to know if the lot can support a fourth bedroom?

Mr. Freeman: No that will occur before we go for a Building Permit. I didn’t…I always recommend to my clients they don’t incur that expense. They pay for me first, if we get through you guys, then we pay for that. So I don’t think it will be a problem. It’s a nice flat lot. Generally I think soils down there are fairly good. 

Chairperson Cardone: Actually on the plans that I have there are currently four bedrooms.

Mr. Freeman: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Three upstairs and one down.

Mr. Freeman: O.K. One down? O.K. I may be wrong about that then.

Chairperson Cardone: So that would create a fifth bedroom. Do we have any other questions?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I have some stuff.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: You’re going to change the size of the tank there.

Mr. Freeman: Correct. It will require changing the size of the tank, additional lines to the leech fields but again that…that’s typically done before we get a Building Permit, so... 

Mr. Hughes: Really? Where?  

Mr. Freeman: Well, in towns on my side of the river…

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Freeman: So.

Mr. Hughes: That’s interesting. I have a question for you before we go any further. Why are you going for the Special Use with the accessory apartment when you can just go with an addition and get whatever you want? There is enough land and everything else. I don’t understand the reasoning behind the accessory apartment.

Mr. Freeman: She wants her own kitchen, which would be a second dwelling.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, O.K. I was just wondering if you were going to save some expense if there is going to be all 1-family but now I see there is a second kitchen. All right that’s all I have for now. But the tank will have to be addressed.

Mr. Freeman: Right.

Mr. Hughes: And, I don’t know…Joe could you enlighten us a little bit about that…where it comes in the process.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, Joe with Code Compliance. Basically we don’t make the applicants go through the extra expense until the approval and then we have them issue a set of stamped plans, an engineer’s septic design and once this procedure is done, then they can go ahead with the expenses.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Thank you. 

Ms. Drake: Thank you Joe.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Donovan: If I can ask a couple of questions? If you could just run through for me the percentage because I have from Code Compliance what they indicate is 25% would be 568 sq ft for the accessory apartment and on their chart they are showing 1056 sq ft which is…doing the math in my head…more like 45% and you’re saying you are only 29%. So what is the size of the accessory apartment?

Mr. Freeman: The size of the accessory apartment is 1056 sq ft.

Mr. Donovan: O.K., what’s the total square footage of the house with the addition or with that as usable space?

Mr. Freeman: That would be…I’m doing the math in my head…3300 sq ft.

Mr. Hughes: So that’s 39%?

Mr. Freeman: No 1000 divided by 3300.

Mr. Donovan: I just want to make sure I understand the magnitude of the variance since your maximum allows 25%. So, if any one has a calculator but we should probably know exactly what the percentage…

Mr. Mattina: Joe from Code Compliance again. With the chart here I come up with 2273 sq ft that’s the house now.

Chairperson Cardone: But once you add in the second floor…

Mr. Mattina: Right, but I don’t take that into account because it’s not there yet. 

Chairperson Cardone: But in terms of the accessory apartment it would be there.

Mr. Mattina: Right, well if it was allowed to be built. Correct.

Mr. Donovan: So, I want to know what the…for this Board to make a determination on whether or not this variance is substantial we need to know what percentage would be occupied. So I think in all fairness you have to say…

Mr. Mattina: With the addition.

Mr. Donovan: …with the addition, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. I got 842. 

Mr. Donovan: Ron, is that what you have? 39%?

Mr. Hughes: 39%.

Chairperson Cardone: Based on 3329 total area?

Mr. Hughes: I have 3758 for a total figure. You have 1058 for the accessory apartment additional footage and what was your original?

Chairperson Cardone: 1056.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I’m…but that’s only 2 off. 1056 and what was your original?

Mr. Freeman: The original number is 2800.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Freeman: And you’re adding on 528 sq ft.

Mr. Hughes: Times two.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Freeman: No total.

Chairperson Cardone: One is already there; the garage is already there.

Mr. Hughes: Now that’s where the difference is. So you have 3358 all together?

Mr. Freeman: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: You’re supposed to have something like 940 something feet. So the difference between 940 and 1058 (1056) is the difference we’re looking at?

Mr. Freeman: Right. It’s a little over 29% for the final number.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so the variance that you’re talking about is about 114 feet.

Mr. Freeman: Right and the part of it right now, I have four very nice walls of a garage to build over, I could move the second floor in but then I get to play gymnastics with the structure. So I’d rather stay on my nice four walls and footings.

Mr. Donovan: Just for one other point of clarification I think the application, the notice indicated also that there was a variance required because the addition shall not alter the appearance of the dwelling. And as I read the Code with 185-38-B-6 (a) does not adversely alter the exterior appearance of the building. So I think that if the Board is satisfied that the exterior is fine then he doesn’t need a variance in that requirement. It would only come if you decided there was a adverse alteration to the exterior of the building.  

Mr. Mattina: Which would constitute what is adverse considered?

Mr. Donovan: Well I think from your perspective you throw that to us.

Mr. Mattina: Well O.K. 

Mr. Donovan: I think that is what you did and that’s what you should do because it’s not…but I if the Board finds that there’s no adverse alteration to the exterior then there is no variance required you just need to make that finding.

Mr. Mattina: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Did I make that clear enough?  

Mr. Hughes: You did. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, in fact, I have written that down.

Mr. Manley: This is a question for you that I have is…currently how many vehicles are garaged on the premises?

Mr. Freeman: Right now, I would say, I haven’t been there during the snowstorm. Right now every time I have been there there have been two cars outside. I know that Carol is selling her husband’s car so that would be one and I’m assuming with the moving in of her daughter and her son-in-law there would be three cars outside total. So, there will be three cars on the property.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Ms. Drake: So then you intend to take off the garage door that is there and make that inside that and make that a front door there?

Mr. Freeman: Right and in the future, speaking with her son-in-law they would like to put on a garage but they want to get this going first. So that’s the future.

Mr. Hughes: So where would that be proposed for the future?

Mr. Freeman: I think along side. As you look in the driveway straight ahead and right along side there and again I don’t know what variances that would require.

Mr. Hughes: So it would be to the right of where the garage is now? 

Mr. Freeman: Yes, to the right of the whole building.

Mr. Hughes: What does that do to your side yard setback?

Mr. Freeman: I didn’t…I haven’t looked at that, so.

Mr. Hughes: The segmentation of projects makes it a little bit difficult because what happens is you end up coming back here again and again…

Mr. Freeman: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …for pools and sheds and all that.

Mr. Freeman: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Your total coverage percentage ratios are going be limited the more you’ve done and the more you put on it.

Mr. Freeman: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: It does look like there is plenty of room there.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, that’s why I asked the question I did. There is so much land I couldn’t figure out why they went with accessory.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: All right. I have nothing else. Thank you.

Mr. Manley: One other, this is just for the applicant, just to make sure that they are aware…when the, if the residence is ever sold in the future…

Mr. Freeman: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …the accessory apartment goes.

Mr. Freeman: O.K., it’s with the owner now.

Mr. Manley: Right, so what happens is if they were to sell it, if they were to sell it under the auspices of it’s a home being sold with an accessory apartment …

Mr. Freeman: Right.

Mr. Manley: …the person purchasing it that would not go to them, they would have to come before this Board again and request a Special Permit again for an accessory apartment.

Mr. Freeman: O.K.

Mr. Manley: And would have to go through the same standard.

Mr. Freeman: I will let them know that.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe if our attorney could explain, for the benefit of the public, the requirements for an accessory apartment throughout the owner occupancy?

Mr. Donovan: Just relative to the owner occupancy? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: I think, just as Mr. Manley explained what the Code indicates is, such approval assuming that a Special Use Permit was granted by this Board shall be renewed by each subsequent owner of the lot to determine that the conditions of the original approval remain applicable. So to the extent that the house is sold it needs to come back to this Board. It can’t be sold as a so-called legal 2-family because the accessory use is only approved relative to this owner. And so there would need to be a new Special Use application submitted to this Board as such time as the house is sold. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: And on the report from the Orange County Department of Planning they had issued a Local Determination. Any other questions from the Board?

Any questions or comments from the public? If not…?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Mr. Freeman: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:20 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007       (Resumption for decision: 9:58 PM)

CAROL RICHARDSON 


481 LITTLE BRITAIN RD, NBGH







(97-1-34) R-3/O ZONE

Applicant is seeking a special use permit for an accessory apartment and area variances for the maximum allowed size of a main dwelling and the apartment shall not alter appearance of a dwelling. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Carol Richardson, 481 Little Britain Road seeking a Special Use Permit for an accessory apartment and the area variances for the maximum allowed size of the main dwelling. This is an unlisted action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a negative declaration?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion for a negative declaration.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Drake: Being the garage is already there and they are just converting that to accessory residence it’s not going to have an impact to the property so I make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. Kunkel: Second the motion.

Mr. Hughes: Could we suggest there be a caveat about the changing of the septic tank because of the additional bedroom to go along with that a condition of the approval?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, what I would typically do with this kind of Special Use Permit is all the requirements of Section 185-38 must be complied with and put a provision to that in the decision and that provides for verification by the Building Department that the sewage disposable system is adequate.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

 (Time Noted – 10:00 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 7:20 PM) 


ZINA HERNANDEZ



2 HILL RUN ROAD, NBGH







(73-19-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Zina Hernandez. 

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on December 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on December 19th. The applicant sent out fifteen registered letters, nine were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.   

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: Ten were returned. Thank you Zina.

Ms. Hernandez: We are applying for a permit for a deck, for two decks on the back of our house. It’s a brand new construction and we had our builder put a deck up but we didn’t know that we had to apply for a Building Permit. He didn’t inform us of that. So all we want is to put up a deck to be able come out of the house from the two back doors.

Chairperson Cardone: You have a Building Permit for the house?

Ms. Hernandez: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Which then should have been constructed exactly as the plans were submitted to the Building Department.

Ms. Hernandez: Well I know that now but when, you know we had a builder, we’ve been working on this house for a long time and the builder, we were working with a builder and the builder…we didn’t know all of these things and so now is when we’re finding out that we had to apply for a Building Permit and stuff for the deck in the back.

Chairperson Cardone: The deck on the side is rather large, is there any way that that could be cut back?

Mr. Hernandez: Well we’re on a back lot so we were thinking that you would permit us to just keep it because we have the 84 is on the back of the lot, the 84 Highway and I have a creek back there and there’s actually you can’t even see the deck from the road and to the side of us there is not a house and to the left but basically on our back lot that’s where we built. So it can’t even be seen from the road.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, sir could you just identify yourself for the record? 

Mr. Hernandez: My name is Ralph I am Zina’s husband. Zina is my wife.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Hernandez: And we’ve been trying to get into the house for a very long and it’s frustrating, our builder just didn’t coordinate anything with us. We told him we wanted a large deck, he built it then we found out all these problems and that’s just what I have to say. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Hughes: I just want to ask Joe. There were no Permits on this Joe?

Mr. Mattina: The dwelling has an open Building Permit and no C. O. yet. And there are no permits for either deck on the side. Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And how is construction, has it been inspected as far as Code or is it…? 

Mr. Mattina: The decks haven’t been inspected at all.

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Mattina: The paperwork was brought in to set up a final inspection for the dwelling when the decks were noticed on the survey and that’s why they were instructed to get an application and come here before we approved the actual dwelling.

Mr. Hughes: I would be a little reluctant as a Member of a Board to approve something that we’re sure if it’s passing Code. I don’t know, maybe our attorney could explain a mechanism where we could hold this off and have them look at that? Or is that improper to do? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, you have two options I would think or you have three options. One you could deny the application, your second option would be to hold the hearing open and to make them have the Building Department go out and do their inspection. I am sure you are going to want the footings dug up so you can see the depth and what’s there. The third option would be to make it a condition of approval.

Mr. Hughes: (to Mr. Mattina) Is that all right with you?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, one other condition is this entire lot is in a flood zone so there are other requirements that are going to have to be met. 


Mr. Hughes: We’ve all been out to the lots on all of these projects and have seen everything around there. We have to go out and look for considerations of the neighborhood, for the neighbors, for the next dwellings on every side of it so we go out to every one of these things. Just for your information. (To the audience)  And I was wondering about that because with that stream that that the fellow references I’ve seen it rolling over there.

Mr. Mattina: Right. It is in a flood zone. It will have to be constructed in a different way than a normal deck. So we will have to, if it’s allowed to stay, do some extra…  

Mr. Hughes: I would be reluctant to rule on it until we have some more information on as to if the footings are substantial and according to Code to be built in that area.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. It is a wood deck and its only 3 feet from the property line.

Mr. Hughes: And there’s other problems with this as far as side yard setbacks and things of that nature but the basic construction is the thing I’m more concerned with.

Mr. Hernandez: The footings were inspected. The footings, they came out and inspected all the footings because I have a…there’s a front porch and also which had footings and that was also inspected at the same time. 

Mr. Hughes: Joe, do you have any record of that in your files?

Mr. Hernandez: Those footings were inspected.

Mr. Mattina: All the records indicate the footings would have been the front deck, no indications of any side decks or rear decks or anything else.

Chairperson Cardone:  The covered porch in the front that was on the original plans? Correct?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, those footings were inspected. The one on the back were not.

Ms. Drake: Those on the back were not?

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Joe, I don’t know, have you seen the actual plans, the survey?

Mr. Mattina: Yes I have seen a copy of the survey.

Mr. Manley: It appears to me and I don’t…again I look at this and I’m seeing that the driveway appears to be on another parcel of property. Is that correct? 

Mr. Mattina: According to the survey, yes. There’s a couple of issues here since we have the survey in that we have to take care of before the C.O. is issued for this as well.

Mr. Manley: Is the applicant aware of that?

Mr. Mattina: Not yet. Well they are now.

Chairperson Cardone: He is now. 

Mr. Mattina: There is that issue, there is an underground oil (propane) tank buried in a flood plain. There’s issues we need to address besides the decks.

Mr. Hernandez: Propane tank.

Mr. Mattina: Propane tank. Correct.

Mr. Manley: The question that I have is if the driveway needs to be relocated the deck may have to come out in order for the driveway to…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …in order for them to move the driveway onto their property.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, well they have the option to park in the front that’s up to them.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Were you aware that your driveway for your parking is actually encroaching or on your neighbors property? 

Ms. Hernandez: It is? Oh, didn’t he apply for a variance before for the driveway?  

Mr. Manley: Whoever’s property is to the south of your deck your driveway is on their property. Whoever is the property to the south of that?

Mr. Mattina: That’s Interstate 84’s property.

Chairperson Cardone: Interstate 84.

Mr. Manley: O.K. so that would be the New York State Thruway Authority so your driveway in on the Thruway Authority’s property.

Ms. Hernandez: When we applied we said we applied for a driveway variance or something that we applied…

Mr. Hughes: To where?

Ms. Hernandez: I think it was to the Town of Newburgh.

Mr. Mattina: The original application they applied for a driveway cut that was the only driveway provision.

Mr. Donnelly: And that just allows you to put your driveway onto the Town road. It doesn’t indicate as your driveway…what happens is as you get to your house the driveway kind of sweeps into the house you are not on your property. You go beyond your property what appears to be on this map anyway your parking area is not on your property.

Ms. Hernandez: O.K. that’s great.

Mr. Manley: Here is the original November 20, 2006 there is a…this is the original document that was submitted to the town and then that conflicts with what we have now. So apparently they proposed one thing and did another. Is your builder here, by any chance, to testify? 

Ms. Hernandez: Oh, no. No and the problem is we have builder and he is doing things…and I mean we have been on this for two years…we’re waiting. We’re frustrated now we’re hearing this...its like, really like we’re not builders. I am not a builder. I hired a builder to build a house and to come and do all these things. I mean he even built the deck without the permit and we didn’t know it. We’re not homeowners. We come from the city and we don’t know all these things. I don’t know what to say but he is not here.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Thank you.

Ms. Hernandez: He even stopped working. We’re litigating now, trying to sue him because we waited so long and we’ve spent so much money already and we’re paying for a house that’s even…we can’t even live in it. So…

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes. Please stand and state your name and address. You can use this microphone.

Ms. Santory: I am Jeanette Santory, we reside at…

Chairperson Cardone: Could you speak into the microphone because...

Ms. Gennarelli: You can pull it down a little bit or take it out of there, it comes out.

Chairperson Cardone: And give your address and your name.

Ms. Santory: 85 Creek Run Road, Santory is the last name. This has been a problem for the past two years and I’m very…not personally to anybody but I don’t know who approved this whole new construction in our rear yard. I have pictures here where this porch is literally on our fence. O.K. This house is literally in our backyard. O.K. It’s obstructing to our privacy and to our views. I don’t know what is going on with this but somebody needs to take a really good look at it. O.K.? If you want to look at the pictures I’ll be more than happy to pass it around. Our home is to the left. This is our side fence. This is their home. 

Mr. Hughes: We’ve all been out. We’ve looked at it.

Ms. Santory: This is how close. This is my window from the kitchen and this is what I have to look at now. This place was never approved to build houses, approved. We have a buried propane tank; there’s municipal gas there. I know we’re all municipal gas. I don’t know why there is a propane tank back there. On the original survey it shows 84 on the other side of the creek. 84 is on the other side. There is a drainage pipe going into the creek.

Mr. Santory: Yes, some type of drainage pipe going into the creek. I have a picture of it. The question here is why…(Inaudible)

Ms. Santory: We were never informed that this was going in

(Inaudible)

Mr. Santory: No one was ever informed of this…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, sir, could you just identify yourself for the record?  

Mr. Santory: My name is Brancato, Janet’s husband.

Mr. Hughes: Joe, did you get anything from planning on this for an approval for a site plan?  

Mr. Mattina: No and I am sure I was the one who did the approval and with the exemptions you’re allowed the lot width, no other variances were required so it was a buildable lot.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. 

Mr. Mattina: They meet the engineered requirements, so.

Ms. Santory: We were told where the property was first auctioned 20 years ago and they told us we could never build on that lot, never. 

Mr. Hughes: I was very surprised when I got out there and saw how the shape of it was.

Mr. Santory: All it did was create a lot of sound now that the trees are down.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Santory: A lot of sound.

Ms. Santory: Our home values have decreased. I’m in the real estate market, the real estate business. I couldn’t put my house on the market with that house right there.

Chairperson Cardone: They had a right to build the house, the only thing in question right now are the two decks.

Ms. Santory: Well we were told we could discuss.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Santory: We were never notified that this house was being built or for permits or variances or anything. So now for the deck we’re getting letters in the mail.

Mr. Manley: Had the…

Ms. Santory: What happened to the original…?

Mr. Manley: Had the home been built exactly as it was presented then there would be no variances needed.

Mr. Hughes: The decks are what flagged it.

Mr. Manley: But what happened was once the house was completed the builder went ahead and added stuff which was not originally on the original plans which now makes it not conformed. 

Ms. Santory: But who approved it to build a house on that property.

Chairperson Cardone: The Building Department.

Mr. Mattina: I did.

Mr. Hughes: The bulk requirements were there, there is enough square footage and enough set backs.

Ms. Santory: Even with the front of the home? It doesn’t matter where that house is facing? It’s facing right on our decks, our fence.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe Joe can explain it a little better.

Mr. Mattina: Joe, from Code Compliance again. When the zoning is done its done with roadways not the front of the house. They can face the house anyway they want as long as they meet their front yard setbacks with the distance from the road. They had their 40 feet. 

Ms. Santory: (Inaudible) Their house is right on our fence. 

Mr. Mattina: They have 15 feet, 16.6 feet from your fence. But they only need 15 feet. 

Ms. Santory: That’s nothing. There is no privacy back there.

Mr. Hughes: They met the buffer requirement.

Mr. Mattina: Yes. They only need 15; they have more than they need.

Mr. Hughes: They were in compliance with the law with the side yard and the front yard and all that until they put the decks on. Until they put the decks on they really weren’t exceeding.

Ms. Santory: (Inaudible) decks looking into our back yard.

Mr. Santory: When they showed us the original one the creek was on the opposite side of 84. That was one of my big questions, if you had a site plan and the creek is on the opposite side of 84. But the creek is on our side not the opposite side. That was my big question. I don’t understand that.

Ms. Santory: The original map shows the 84 was on the other side.

Mr. Hughes: The creek.

Ms. Santory: The creek was on the other side. So something must have been changed or somebody modified it, to allow this over here.

Mr. Santory: That was the only thing I had a question on.

Mr. Hughes: Could you maybe dig that stuff up or FOIL for us, the original application?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Betty is saying she has it.

Chairperson Cardone: We have everything. We have it.

Ms. Drake: She has it.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s the one we have been passing around.

Ms. Gennarelli: We have everything here. Maybe you didn’t get to see this.

Mr. Hughes: Is that the one Jim passed down?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I would like them to see it.

Chairperson Cardone: You can come up here and look at it.

Mr. & Ms. Santory approached.

Chairperson Cardone: Here is the creek right here.

Mr. & Ms. Santory: (Inaudible)

Ms. Hernandez: If I had known it wasn’t a buildable lot I wouldn’t have built a house there. 

Mr. & Ms. Santory:  (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: But this is what we are talking about with the deck and the driveway.

Ms. Santory: This is not the map I saw originally. I have a copy of it at home. (Inaudible)

Mr. Manley: One of the questions that I have is when the home, when the builder comes before the Town for a request for a Building Permit. Does the Building Department take into account access to the property?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, it has to be accessible and they did obtain a Highway Permit.

Mr. Manley: Which we have the Highway Permit but does the and again this may be a question for the Highway Department. Does the Highway Department look to see if indeed their access that they are granting is over their own property or if they have an easement to access that lot.

Mr. Hernandez: Yes, yes.

Mr. Mattina: This lot has a long legal history that dates way back maybe 25 years and it was from the Town attorney stated to me in writing in the file that it is an accessible lot. There is years of legal history for this access.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Is there more than one property that enjoys that access?

Mr. Mattina: That is it.

Mr. Hughes: That’s it?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Manley: If you looked at the Tax Map the piece of property would appear to be landlocked. 

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Manley: But the survey that we have it shows an access along it looks like the Thruway property to this lot.

Mr. Hughes: Is this the lot that has a partial easement from the Town next to it that the Town conceded to your property? 

Mr. Hinwood: My name is John Hinwood and I live right directly in front of the house that’s been built.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you just state your address?

Mr. Hinwood: 89 Creek Run Road. I’m speaking in behalf of my sister. She owns the house and I have a letter notarized that I can speak for her if you’d like to see the letter.

I have had a history of flooding over the years and we would of bought that property years ago but we were specifically told no building on this lot. So why buy something and pay taxes on it if you can’t build on it? Now that creek does flood and it does happen a lot over the years and my basement floods on a regular basis. With that basement that they put in there I am going to have twice the flooding damage, there is nowhere for the water to go. And as far as the porches go, the porches…I put an 8-foot fence up and that porch is still towering over my fence and has taken privacy totally away from my house. I mean if the stand on that porch they can look right into my yard, every window, I have all my windows closed now because they can see right into my house and I can see right into their house. 

Ms. Santory: This is a picture of that house and this is their deck next door.

Mr. Hinwood: And the fence that I put up is only 10 feet from their house, 10 feet from their house.

Ms. Santory: Do you have my other pictures?

Chairperson Cardone: Pass them down that way.

Mr. Hernandez: May we speak?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Hernandez: Well the decks that we are talking about are in the back.

Mr. Hernandez: They are all in the back.

Ms. Hernandez: The front porch, originally when we went for this and the builder said that you could build on this lot, originally we had thought that the house was going to face this way. I am not happy either that it’s facing that way and that it’s facing their house either. You know but what can I do now? I’m not happy that I have to face…I have to do the same thing. I had to buy curtains and blinds and everything. Because I wasn’t happy either when I saw it I was like ‘what happened’? I told the builder listen why is it facing this way and not this way. He said, no we had to put it this way. I was like, O.K. well I guess so. But its nothing personal I didn’t want to build a house and to be looking at everybody.

Mr. Hernandez: Right and we don’t have a basement. It’s a crawl space.

Ms. Hernandez: We don’t have a basement and we put in...it cost us $2000 extra for each flood vent. We have flood vents, they are called flood vents and we put I think it was 6 or 8 of them so that way in case of flood that there’s water to go, that it can come in and out. As soon as there is water it goes straight into the flood vents, open up and all the water goes. So we don’t have a basement. And I’m upset about that too because we don’t have a basement and originally the plan for the house was to have a basement. We eliminated our basement and we eliminated a lot of things and…

Mr. Manley: How did you get in possession of the lot? Did you get the lot when you purchased the home from the developer or did you own the lot first and then?

Ms. Hernandez: Actually we were looking for land and went through Century 21 and Century 21 showed it as a buildable lot. So we bought it. And before we bought it, we told our builder listen go and check it out make sure that this is a buildable lot.

Mr. Manley: So you bought the lot as a buildable lot and then contracted with the contractor to build the home?  Am I understanding?

Ms. Hernandez: Yes. Well we already had the building plan that we had and he told us to look for a buildable lot because he wasn’t looking for a lot for us. We had to find our own lot. So that’s what we did. We found a lot and we told him to go and check them out because we had seen a lot of different lots.  And he said well this one, this is a buildable lot so go and buy it. Mr. and Mrs. Hernandez buy it because this is a buildable lot. He said he checked it out and everything so we went by his word, O.K. it’s a buildable lot.

Mr. Manley: But you purchased the lot from Century 21 not the builder, right?

Ms. Hernandez: Yes.

Mr. Hernandez: Right.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Eaton: Were you aware it was in a flood zone?

Ms. Hernandez: No, we did not know that either. When we went for the survey we paid a surveyor and the surveyor, he sent the survey and didn’t say that it was in a flood zone either. So we didn’t find out until actually latter on that it was in a flood zone. If I would have known it was in a flood zone I wouldn’t have bought. I mean we are out so much money its not even funny anymore. If I would have know that I wouldn’t have built but nobody said anything to us and the surveyor the first survey that he sent out didn’t even specify that it had a flood zone but he said we didn’t ask him if it was in a flood zone or not. Which is like I don’t understand that either but… 

Ms. Santory: This is a copy of the drain that goes into the creek to show how close this drain is out of this house.

Mr. Hinwood: And also when the basement was originally put in, I think there was supposed to be a basement so there is more concrete blocking under the ground with a cement floor which is retaining water back towards my house so its not just flowing and its all clay back there to on top of that. 

Chairperson Cardone: I have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning, which recommends Local Determination. Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board? Do we have any other questions or comments from the public?  

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: We have several options here to keep it open, to close the hearing?

Ms. Drake: I would like to make a motion to keep the Public Hearing open so the Building Department can go out there and inspect the property and determine whether the deck (one) can stay there or what needs to be done with the deck to make it for the flood zone, investigate the propane tank and see whether issues need to be resolved before we finalize the…make a final determination on the variance. 

Mr. Hughes: Wasn’t there another tank mentioned as well? A fuel oil tank?

Ms. Drake: It was propane instead.

Chairperson Cardone: No it was a propane tank.

Mr. Mattina: I had said fuel oil instead of propane. It’s propane.

Ms. Hernandez: Isn’t that we said was there a gas thing? And he said no, the builder said no there was no gas. I was told there was no gas. If I would have known there was gas I would have got a gas tank too. But we didn’t know he said we needed to get propane or oil and that’s what we got. Well so it’s not like we did on purpose, oh let’s go dig a hole for a propane tank but if we would have know that there was gas and access to it we would have gotten that also. We were trying to do whatever we were supposed to do.

Mr. Manley: Are you on well water?

Ms. Hernandez: No. We were hooked up…

Mr. Manley: Town water?

Ms. Hernandez: Town water. Town and sewer.

Mr. Manley: And you are on Town sewer?

Ms. Hernandez: Right. But we were paying taxes on all kinds of things.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion?

Mr. Donovan: I think we have a motion, right? 

Ms. Drake: Yes I made the motion to keep the Public Hearing open. 

Mr. Manley: I’ll second the motion if you don’t have a second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Mr. Donovan: And just to be clear to the members of the public, the motion is to keep the Public Hearing open until January 24th. Now you will not get another notice. You won’t get anything in mail but the Public Hearing is continued to January 24th, 7PM in the same room. O.K. but just to be clear you will not get anything else in the mail. 

Ms. Drake: And the Building Department will go out there and do an inspection and give us more information.

Mr. Hughes: Should we give Joe a bill of materials to look for this thing because there is a lot of things here that I see that are not resolved properly and one of the things is is the applicant willing to take the chance and not have this approved for the decks to withdraw that back and make some sort of privacy between both homes in that effect. I don’t know if we dare bring that up at this point or not but to me it seems like a lot of infringements that went on here and it multiplied into a huge problem.

Chairperson Cardone: Not legally.

Mr. Hughes: Not legally. Then I guess we can’t even think about it.

Chairperson Cardone: The decks are the only thing we have to be concerned with.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think that is what he is saying if they took the decks down they wouldn’t need to be here.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: That’s exactly what I was trying to get at. He is my interpreter.

Mr. Donovan: Does that work both ways by the way?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, that’s what scares me, I understand you.

Mr. Manley: If the Board decided to, let’s say, go towards approving the decks once the Building Department went out there, could we make a condition of approval some additional screening that would screen the properties between the two as part of a condition?

Chairperson Cardone: They are talking about the other side of the house. They are not talking about the side where the decks are.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Neighbors: Only thing worried about propane tank, don’t know how many gallons down there, (inaudible) small children, if it floods and gets wet and it rots there could be a problem with that also. (Inaudible) should hook up to Central Hudson gas.

Mr. Mattina: Joe from Code Compliance, the inspector that is handling this when he does his final inspections, the driveway issue will be addressed, the propane tank will be unburied and secured the way it has to be in a flood zone. There is an inspector handling this and when he does his inspections he takes care of this at that time. So like I said I am just here for the deck, that’s it.

Mr. Hughes: Could there be a provision or a condition made with this that they discontinue the propane and adapt to Central Hudson?

Mr. Donovan: Here’s your ability, you have the ability to obviously approve an application, deny an application or approve it with conditions. The conditions have to be reasonably related to some legitimate objective of the Board. So within those confines or within that general structure we have the ability to impose conditions. There has to be a legitimate reason to impose them and the conditions have to be rationally related to that reason.

Mr. Hughes: How was the backyards last summer after those two rains? Up to the back door?

Neighbor: Pretty much.

Mr. Hughes: So a tank in the ground could have popped out the next time that the area floods?

Neighbor: They put a new drainage in front of my house; it’s terrible it’s worse than the alternate. It just blocks right up. They should have left it the way it was. Now that’s even worse now (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Are you referring to the little blacktop collar along the side of the road?

Neighbors: The little tiny grate that they put in there. There’s two huge grates on the left where the water doesn’t go to that side, it stays to the right side.    

Mr. Hernandez: The Highway Department did that not us. 

Neighbors: That’s O.K. I am not talking about that…that’s more water coming down onto the property

Mr. Hernandez: We had nothing to do with that.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. This is held open until next month.

(Time Noted – 7:53 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 7:53 PM) 
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23 KINGS HILL TERRACE, WLKL







(3-1-5.12) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation and/or area variances for the maximum height, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to keep a prior built garage.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Richard and Kara Campbell.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on December 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on December 19th. The applicant sent out thirty-two registered letters, twenty-three were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.   

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Campbell: Hi, I am Kara Campbell and we’re here to apply for a variance to keep our shed as built. We also would like to get an interpretation of the definition of building height as it applies to our property and where the shed was built on our property. It’s under Section 185 – 3 and to keep our accessory structures which apparently in excess of 1000 sq ft as built. 

Chairperson Cardone: The building height as defined in the Building Code is vertical distance measured from the average elevation of finished grade along the side of the structure fronting on the nearest street to the highest point of such structure. 

Ms. Campbell: So our question is, we took that to mean the nearest street to the shed would have been Fox Hill Road? If you see the newly submitted plot plans and we were told that that was not the that it would be applicable to Route 300 which is, I don’t know the distance but it’s quite far from where the shed is and it’s our position that the height of the structure that fronts Fox Hill Road was the 15 feet high.

Chairperson Cardone: Joe, I have a question. The elevation that was taken from the grade along the side of the structure not from Route 300, correct?

Mr. Mattina: I didn’t do it. I was just coming here for variance for the height. I didn’t know there was an interpretation involved. It comes from another inspector.

Ms. Campbell: We were told at the time of the inspection, I believe you were out there but when he measured, he did not measure the side that sides Fox Hill Road. It was the side that fronts towards Route 300 so we were just wondering.

Chairperson Cardone: Right but the elevation was taken from the side by the structure not Route 300 is what I am telling you. Correct?

Mr. Campbell: Richard Campbell, the four sides of the structure it’s at the rear of our property. Obviously you’ve been out and saw it.

Chairperson Cardone: I went there, quite attractive.

Mr. Campbell: As you face the front of the structure where the opening is, in the rear is the side that faces the closest street was my interpretation of the rule and that measures 15 feet. So that’s where I was a little not understanding. 

Ms. Campbell: I guess we are just wondering if we are in violation or not pursuant to the definition of building height.

Mr. Hughes: If I may? I think what they are trying to tell you is this is where your building is and there is a hill here and a hill here they want you to measure on the side so that it’s the medium of the two grades. So if you measure on the side of the building to the roof is it 15 feet or is it 15 feet from down here or up here?

Mr. Campbell: Well by the street side, by the rule what I’m reading, the Fox Hill Road side which is the rear of the building…

Mr. Hughes: We’ve been out there.

Mr. Campbell: …the grade is 15 feet from there to the top of the structure. Now the two opposing sides, you know are concrete, there’s like a concrete foundation that runs over from, you know, this property goes you know back almost two hundred years and there exists a structure there. So we just built on top of and brought the grade level true to the 15 feet that was required. 

Mr. Hughes: Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, I am not familiar with the lot. Where is Fox Hill?   

Mr. Hughes: Do you follow me with the grade? You are looking for a medium average from the middle of the building to the roof so to speak. 

Mr. Campbell: If I based on the interpretation of what the rule states and where our grade level is based on the street side is 15 feet.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: If I could make a suggestion none of this is going to make its way into the minutes unless somebody stands back and talks into the microphone. Betty asked me to say that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Campbell: I would just like to point out based on what I was reading from the interpretation, the grade level here and the road being out here, this would be Fox Hill Road, is the 15 feet that was required by the a…

Mr. Donovan: Well I think the…we are not going to be able to interpret that tonight because we need whoever went out and did the inspection to go back out and tell us exactly where he measured from and then if supposed to be measured at a different location we need clarification to what that measurement was.

Mr. Campbell: I think it was based on the Building Inspector came out and we had the discussion, he was somewhat unsure. He referred to 300. I referred to the rules so I said if you’re saying the closest street it would have been Fox Hill not 300, which is all the way out here.

Chairperson Cardone: But actually it would be Kings Hill Terrace would be the closest street. 

Mr. Mattina: Kings Hill Terrace would be the closest road.

Mr. Campbell: So then you would take into consideration the private road? 

Mr. Mattina: Yes, a road is a road.

Mr. Campbell: O.K. I mean then it would still be the same.

Ms. Drake: It would still be the side.

Mr. Campbell: Correct. I mean like I said this unfortunately is all paved across here, you know, the grade level back here is a tiny bit higher but this is all kind of combined into one another. You can’t see it on this plan but this is all concrete. So if you wanted to…technically Fox Hill is closer than Kings Hill. Fox Hill is literally right out here.

Mr. Mattina: Well that’s 230 and then 58, that’s 288, 130.

Mr. Campbell: This is well over 300 feet.

Mr. Mattina: 66, 339, yes across the other property.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Your Building Permit application has a height of 17 feet.

Mr. Campbell: I understand but we amended it. We amended it when we went though this process.

Mr. Manley: Where is the actual amendment in the…?

Mr. Campbell: When he came out to do the inspection we had amended the grade level to be in conformance with…

Mr. Manley: What you are saying you changed the grade yourself?

Mr. Campbell: Correct.

Mr. Manley: At the property level?

Mr. Campbell: Correct.

Mr. Manley: So what we need to do is we need to then is to get that confirmation then from the Building Department that that is the correct grade.

Mr. Campbell: That’s fine. He was there I mean if he needed to come back to measure it again, you know, fine.

Mr. Manley: I think its our…at least my understanding that you’re seeking a variance for 2 feet, according to …

Mr. Campbell: Not necessarily, I am under the impression because the interpretation, like I said, I wanted to be sure that its Fox Hill Road that we are referring to and the grade level being at that height to the top of that building being 15 feet. And I am saying when the Building Inspector was there…

Mr. Donovan: What we have in terms of your notice of disapproval from the Building Department is you are over 15 feet in height, it ranges from 15 feet 6 inches to plus or minus 17 feet. So if you are saying there is some sort of discrepancy and you want the Building Department to go back out and verify it then that’s up to the Board. But what we have in front of us, we don’t have any independent verification that the side that you indicate is 15 feet. All we can go by is what the Building Department says.

Mr. Campbell: O.K.

Ms. Campbell: If that’s the case, then our second measure would be to say that apply for the variance that is minimum it’s a small amount, 6 inches higher than the required…than the requisite 15 feet. We would then seek a variance for…

Chairperson Cardone: But as it came from the Building Department what you are applying for is a 2-foot variance. So it’s really better to have it re-measured, I think. I don’t know how the rest of the Board feels.

Mr. Hughes: If I could suggest if we are going to rule on it that we put it at the 17 feet height to be sure that it’s the highest part of it and name it nominally at 17 feet plus or minus so that we can rule on it. If not, you are going to have to burn up some time and get somebody out and get confirmation back.

Mr. Campbell: I’d rather rule on it.

Chairperson Cardone: There are other issues here to. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: If I may? If we can look at all of the issues here and that is the only issue that is questionable we may be able to even approve it with that condition for a confirmation and then we can move forward.

Mr. Campbell: Yes, I understand. That’s fine.

Mr. Hughes:  O.K. The other?

Chairperson Cardone: The other is that space for 3 vehicles; there is space for a total of 6, space for a total of 6 vehicles. I have a question on the 3-car garage that’s attached to the house. Do you have a, is there a Building Permit for that?

Mr. Campbell: No, we are seeking that now.

Ms. Campbell: Well that’s a separate from tonight.

Mr. Hughes: What’s the square footage total?

Ms. Campbell: For the garage? We are not here for the garage tonight.

Mr. Hughes: No, I am not talking about that one; I am talking about the shed.

Chairperson Cardone: But the garage does figure into our decision tonight.

Mr. Hughes: Yes it does. 

Mr. Campbell: 29 x 32.

Mr. Hughes: You have 1280 sq ft so that is an issue; the maximum allowed in the formula applies right? The 1000 but we don’t know what the formula is.

Mr. Mattina: It does not apply.

Mr. Hughes: It does not apply here?

Mr. Mattina: No. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So you got 280 sq. ft. total over on the footprint, you’ve got 15 height in question and you’ve got a total of 6 vehicles and we can only 4.

Mr. Campbell: But we’re not…the shed is not being utilized to store motor vehicles.

Mr. Hughes: Does it have a garage door on it?

Mr. Campbell: No, sir.

Chairperson Cardone: It has no door.

Mr. Hughes: No door on it? Will it have a garage door on it? 

Mr. Campbell: No, no we use it like a utility shed.

Chairperson Cardone: There was a boat in there when I was out there.

Mr. Campbell: No I was just going to say, we have a boat in there, we keep all of our maintenance for all of the house. We keep all the pool equipment and you know extra like my kids toys, bicycles.

Chairperson Cardone: So you are saying it’s not a garage it’s a shed?

Mr. Campbell: Correct.

Ms. Campbell: It’s a shed.

Mr. Campbell: It is a shed.

Ms. Eaton: Is there a driveway to it?

Mr. Campbell: No, maam. 

Ms. Eaton: I wasn’t going to hike that.

Mr. Campbell: (Inaudible) don’t utilize it to store our cars, put my boat back there just for the winter.

Ms. Campbell: When we purchased the property there was a large barn on the property. 

Mr. Campbell: It was 50’; excuse me, I’m sorry.

Ms. Campbell: And the other two buildings that are there, one is our daughter’s dollhouse, you know playhouse and the one is what you call a well house over the top of the well and its kept locked.

Mr. Campbell: Yeah, it supports the well

Ms. Campbell: But we did tear down the barn.

Mr. Campbell: Which greatly exceeded...it was a 50-foot x probably 30 ft by 2-story barn that was in disrepair and prepared to be demolished.

Mr. Manley: When was the garage built?

Mr. Campbell: Well, completed or started?

Mr. Manley: Started.

Mr. Campbell: Spring of this year.

Mr. Manley: And, just out of curiosity what prompted you to apply for a Building Permit at this point?

Mr. Campbell: What prompted me now to apply? I had to.

Mr. Hughes: So you built this without a Permit?

Chairperson Cardone: Right, both of them.

Mr. Campbell: Yes, I built both structures without.

Mr. Donovan: When was the barn built? 

Ms. Campbell: The barn we tore down?

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry; I call it the barn because it’s shown as a barn on your survey.

Ms. Campbell: Right.

Mr. Campbell: At the same time.

Mr. Donovan: The spring of this year?

Mr. Campbell: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: And when did you tear down the barn?

Mr. Campbell: Probably about…

Ms. Campbell: October.

Mr. Campbell: Yeah about October of this year.

Chairperson Cardone: Was it in the same location as this?

Mr. Campbell: It was to the rear of the 3-car garage that’s attached to the home. 

Mr. Manley: Is there maybe, is there an explanation as to perhaps what prevented you from getting a Building Permit initially when you started the work to perhaps avoid some of this what we’re going through now? Is there a reason why maybe you didn’t check with the Town or…?

Mr. Campbell: No, no specific reason. I just didn’t. 

Ms. Eaton: Did you build your home? 

Mr. Campbell: Yes, maam.

Mr. Eaton: Did you get a Building Permit for that?

Mr. Campbell: Oh no, my home? I’m sorry. No the home was built probably in 1800.

Ms. Campbell: In 1850.

Mr. Campbell: It’s you know an old…

Ms. Eaton: You weren’t aware that Building Permits were supposed to be completed and filled out before you started a construction project?

Mr. Campbell: Well I know that now. I never done something like this before, so…

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Any questions or comments from the public? 

We have a choice to motion to hold the Hearing open or close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I’ve got one more question. Joe, do you have any inspections that you need to do on the barn/shed that needs to be done on that?

Mr. Mattina: Basically Inspector Campbell (Jim) was out there on the detached barn…

Ms. Drake: Right. 

Mr. Mattina: …and I’m going from his comments I don’t think there is anything unsafe, there wouldn’t be any construction issues that would prevent him from obtaining a variance.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Mattina: Just to answer Mr. Manley’s question, a complaint was filed from the Assessor’s Office. That’s how this all came about. With the addition and the sheds and the garages.

Mr. Manley: So, they did a routine inspection?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And that’s how they picked up on it?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion either to close the Hearing or to hold it open?

Mr. Hughes: In order to facilitate the project here and not to have to go through re-mailings again I would suggest we leave the Hearing open until we hear back from the Building Department. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is that a motion? 

Mr. Hughes: It is.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do I have a second?

Ms. Drake: I’ll second the motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Campbell: Do we come back?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, this will be held open until January 24th. Yes.

Mr. Campbell: We will not get a notice?

Chairperson Cardone: You will not get a notice. No. If anyone is here interested in that particular application they will not be noticed. It’s held open and you return on that date.

Mr. Donovan: And Joe, do we need to do anything further to make sure someone goes back out and re-measures and…

Mr. Mattina: I have no...the only thing before you close it, the interpretation for how we are going to measure this…is it going to be the closest by the definition, the closest street which is on the backside of the structure? Not the front of the house? That’s the confusion. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s how I read it.

Mr. Campbell: That’s I think where the problem lies.

Mr. Mattina: Is it the closest street period or is it somebody else’s property, or his property line?

Mr. Donovan: Follow the Code precisely. 

Mr. Mattina: Right, well yeah, I’m in the middle of this.

Chairperson Cardone: The nearest street to the highest point of such structure.

Mr. Mattina: The nearest street…doesn’t matter where the street is?

Mr. Donovan: That’s the nearest street. It’s the nearest street.

Mr. Campbell: O.K. that’s where a lot of the confusion was with regards to this particular…so, thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:10 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 8:10 PM) 


FINKELSTEIN & PARTNERS 

1279 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-15.1) IB ZONE

Applicant is area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one freestanding sign per lot to erect signs.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Finkelstein & Partners.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on December 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on December 19th. The applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.  

Mr. Rones: Good evening, my name is Joe Rones; I’m a member of Finkelstein & Partners, the applicant. We are going to be moving our headquarters office from our current 9W location in the City of Newburgh to the 1279 Route 300 location where Time Warner currently is. It used to be the Fleet Bank building and we plan on beginning our move probably sometime in February and hopefully completing within a month or so. We plan on having about 110 employees working there and this will be the headquarters office for our…and we have nine offices throughout the State. We are here tonight for a variance for sign area and for the one additional pylon sign. I believe one is permitted under the Ordinance. We need the two signs because I’m sure you are aware there are two entrances to this property, the building. One on Route 300 and another one around the corner and separated by some other uses on Route 17K. So in order to properly demarcate those entrances we want to place our pylon signs there and we based our sign sizes and design on the signs that Fleet Bank previously had on the building. Those appeared to be acceptable at one time to the Town and we were hoping they would be acceptable again. Tonight I have here Jim Hickey from Charles Signs who is our contractor and he can explain to you the size and the construction of the signs.

Mr. Hughes: Did you say pylons?

Mr. Rones: Yes, there would be a pylon sign near the curb cut on Route 300 and another on near the curb cut on Route 17K.

Chairperson Cardone: So there would be a total of two?

Mr. Rones: Two that is correct.

Mr. Hughes: Our application only has one listed on it.

Chairperson Cardone: No it says two.

Mr. Rones: It says two.

Mr. Hughes: I thought there were two signs on the building and one pylon.

Mr. Rones: Two and two.

Mr. Hughes: Two and two, O.K. that’s why I asked when you said pylons.

Mr. Manley: Could I just get clarification on something? The signs…you want the signs on top of the building, yes?

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And also are you replacing the Fleet Bank?

Mr. Rones: There is no Fleet Bank sign currently.

Mr. Manley: Because you were just showing a Fleet Bank (sign) here.

Mr. Rones: We just included those to show the signs that were previously there. 

Mr. Manley: Were you going to put those back?

Mr. Rones: Well the pylon signs are going to be in approximately the same location and are of a similar size as those Fleet Bank signs. So in a sense we are putting them back. We are putting them back with our content as opposed to the Fleet Bank content.

Mr. Manley: And was there one pylon or two pylons? I am trying to remember. I can’t remember that far back.

Mr. Rones: Let me have Mr. Hickey address this.

Mr. Hickey: Jim Hickey, Charles Signs, to answer your question there was two freestanding signs for Fleet. There was one at the 17K entrance as well as one at the 300 entrance to that property.  

Mr. Manley: Right where it comes in by the Neptune?

Mr. Hickey: Correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K. So there was one Fleet Bank pylon there and there was one on 300 when you first come in the driveway?

Mr. Hickey: Correct and both those signs were to one side of the driveway or the other depending on what access.

Mr. Manley: And you are proposing to put those two back?

Mr. Hickey: Correct.

Mr. Manley: Plus the two on top of the building?

Mr. Hickey: Yes, which actually would replace the Fleet signs that were there prior.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hickey: So the square footage is the variance, the sizes we came up was based upon what was there prior and approved prior. 

Mr. Manley: And that’s of course in addition to other signs that are there now, you have the Smith Barney, they are still there?

Mr. Hickey: There is just the Time Warner sign there.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: At one point Fleet Bank came before this Board for a third pylon sign. That sign has been removed, correct?

Mr. Rones: Yes, well there are no Fleet Bank pylon signs there currently.

Mr. Hickey: We are unaware of the third sign anyway. There’s two foundations that we looked at and that we intend on using.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Eaton: Is the Time Warner sign coming down? They are moving out?

Mr. Rones: No they are not moving out currently.

Mr. Hughes: Are you going in as a tenant or an owner of the building.

Mr. Rones: The Finkelstein firm is a tenant. The owner is a company called Allstate Equities. They are based in Monsey, New York. We are going to be leasing 53 ½% of the building and we have options to…excuse me, for the remaining space as it becomes available. 

Chairperson Cardone: I have a question for Joe. I am a little bit confused about the fact that when Fleet came before us to get a sign for Smith Barney it states in the decision two freestanding signs have already been permitted on the property…

Mr. Mattina: Right but as of now, there are no signs on the property. There are no indications when they were removed, you know, they are putting them in different locations.

Chairperson Cardone: But when did it come about that the two freestanding signs were already permitted on the property.

Mr. Hughes: I think that was in ’99.

Chairperson Cardone: No, ’99 was when the third one was permitted.

Mr. Hughes: I thought they were all in ’99. Maybe I read it wrong. 

Chairperson Cardone: No, looking at the minutes it says there are presently two freestanding signs on the property and they came to this Board looking for a third sign. So my question is…I’m wondering if two were already permitted?

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And when did that happen…?

Mr. Rones: That was when the Fleet Bank occupied the entire premises. They had those two pylon signs. Then as they were moving out of the building and Smith Barney was renting the top floor I believe they applied for another sign and Smith Barney had their kind of black logo sign…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Rones: …out on the front law there. Now Smith Barney has left, they’re no longer in the building and that sign is gone.

Chairperson Cardone: I understand that.

Mr. Donovan: I guess the question is if we are only allowed one freestanding how did it come about that there were two for Fleet Bank?

Mr. Rones: Well I don’t know actually…

Mr. Donovan: Do you know, Joe, Joe Mattina not Joe Rones?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what I am trying to find out.

Mr. Mattina: As far as I know there are no signs. I didn’t go back and research the history of what was there or what was not there.

Chairperson Cardone: But I think we need to know whether two are permitted because if two are permitted then they wouldn’t need a variance for the two.

Mr. Mattina: Well if a variance was granted to Fleet Bank for two signs in two locations and these are different signs in different locations it wouldn’t apply anyway.

Mr. Rones: We looked, well they are going to be in the same location as the Fleet Bank signs were but I did look in the Building Department’s file for this property and while I found the Building Permits the applications for the Fleet Bank signs that I gave you a copy of there was no record of a variance and nobody in the office next door in the other building was able to find any record of the variance being granted. So how that all came about I couldn’t tell you but it didn’t… 

Mr. Mattina: As far as my indication the signs were never put up, they are not there anymore so it’s all null and void.

Mr. Manley: I think one of the issues that I’m looking at is that when you have a large building such as that Fleet Bank building, I call it the Fleet Bank building, because that’s what everybody remembers it as. Tenants come and go and I think the big issue that I am battling with every time a tenant comes or goes there has to be a change of sign. Would it not be easier if and I’ll just give you an example where Lowe’s is, they have that big sign, right?

Mr. Rones: Right.

Mr. Manley: And Lowe’s is the largest tenant so they have the largest proportion of sign up there, then underneath that you have the subtenants like Barnes & Noble. Would it not be a better idea if for the Fleet Bank building we can just incorporate all the tenants on one smaller sign with listing all the tenants, Time Warner?

Mr. Rones: The problem with that is who is paying for the sign? And in this case it isn’t the…it isn’t like this building is brand new being developed where the developer is putting up the sign. The other tenants are not contributing to the sign they have whatever signage…

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Mr. Rones: …they have, there is a directory for the building and they have relatively small portions of the building, so it’s just not in the economics of the current situation there to have that kind of a sign put up because it wouldn’t be fair…I don’t…submit to have our firm pay for signage for the rest of those there.

Mr. Manley: That’s understandable. That’s definitely noted.

Mr. Hickey: And if I could add to that they also have options on the balance of the building as it becomes available so the number of tenants will be decreasing over time anyway.

Mr. Manley: In theory, yes, but it could also go the other way where another tenant comes in or they opt not to you know obviously things change. Fleet Bank had that whole building at one point and now it’s cut up with a number of tenants. How do you prevent or how would this Board prevent let’s say another tenant moves in and they want a sign and now you’ve got another sign on another part of the lawn and now you’re starting to deal with a issue of…?

Mr. Rones: Well, perhaps that is something that could be dealt with at the time when the situation arises if there was another substantial tenant and they wanted to add to our sign I am sure something could be worked out. But there is no interest in doing that at present. 

Mr. Manley: Would you be willing to add that part of a condition to your approval perhaps?

Mr. Rones: Well what would that be?  

Mr. Manley: Just a condition of your approval that you will make signage available on your freestanding sign to allow other tenants to join on if they wish to have space on there?

Mr. Rones: Oh but they’d have to…we’d need a larger sign if we were going to do that.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Hickey: A couple of things, I do this all over the eastern U.S. and this comes up from time to time all the tenant situations and the current situation is that there is major tenant in the building and nobody else is looking for signage on it. The Board has controls in a sense that you can limit the square footage or allow the square footage that you want and the number of freestanding signs. But certainly if another tenant comes forward to you, is looking to put another freestanding sign up you have the ability to stop that or force them to come back if the space is that important to them with the signage. When they negotiate the lease they will have to come back with the owner of the building at that time to work that out with the other tenants in the building.

Mr. Rones: Or us.

Mr. Hickey: Or Finkelstein. So the question posed is very hypothetical and trying to encompass a solution for all possible scenarios becomes very, very difficult in this situation. But you do have the ability to control that as you go forward. Does that make sense?

Mr. Rones: In other words right now if we were going to put up a larger sign in order to accommodate the possibility that some future tenant is going to want to add to that pylon that’s going to increase the cost for us obviously because the sign is going to have to be larger and it’s based on some hypothetical situation but we are not the building owner.

However we do have a right of first refusal with respect to the purchase of the building as well as I mentioned an option for the rest of the space as it becomes available. We’ve been, frankly we’ve been in business for I think maybe at least as long as Fleet Bank was. The firm started in the City of Newburgh in 1959. So we’ve got a good history of staying power.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning. Based on our review of the materials submitted regarding the above referenced special use permit and variance, in accordance with section 239 l (L) and m (M) of the General Municipal Law we do not have any significant intercommunity or countywide considerations to bring to your attention. We note however that large internally lit signs can be distracting to motorists and we recommend that if the Town should consider granting the area variance then the minimum variance should be granted with reasonable conditions and the recommend Local Determination.

Mr. Hickey: I would like to review the Town of Newburgh’s Code Compliance sheet that I was able to review today. There is a discrepancy between what we have for the square footage that we are asking for and what’s on the sheet and it makes a substantial difference in the percentage difference for the variance. The way it’s currently written it states there is allowed 392 sq. ft. There is existing 54 sq. ft., which is the Time Warner sign. It says proposed signage 818 sq. ft. approximately, which puts it over 480 sq. ft., which gives you 122% variance. With our calculations and I’m certainly willing to through this with the Board the proposed signage is 709 sq. ft. not 818 which puts it over 317 sq. ft. which reduces the variance request down to approximately 80%.

Mr. Mattina: Is that what you have for the building and for the freestanding signs and everything? 

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Joe, do you count both sides of the sign? So the square footage counts for both sides?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: Oh, then that’s the discrepancy then. We are all set so thank you very much.

Mr. Mattina: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: What was it he didn’t count both sides?

Mr. Mattina: I count both sides, they didn’t.

Ms. Eaton: Will these signs be lit 24 hours a day? 

Mr. Hickey: They will be lit dusk to dawn. 

Mr. Hughes: Or in inclement weather?

Mr. Hickey: They will be controlled by photo eyes so yes.  

Mr. Hughes: Are you building a goalpost type pylon?

Mr. Hickey: I’m sorry ask me that again.

Mr. Hughes: You’re the guy in the sign business, right? 

Mr. Hickey: I didn’t understand your question.

Mr. Hughes: Are you building a goalpost type pylon?

Mr. Hickey: It’s a single pole structure. 

Mr. Hughes: A single pole, so there is no there is no opportunity to hang anything else on it once you put the single pole up? And your sign will be a mushroom on the top?

Mr. Hickey: Correct. That’s the way the drawings currently are yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So that then doesn’t give us an advantage for another tenant to hang anything else on that pole?

Mr. Hickey: I would certainly believe my client would entertain a different design.

Mr. Rones: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hickey: The reason why they are currently is designed a single pole is there is existing foundations that are foundations for a single pole. That’s what drove that based on the Fleet Bank. Certainly anything can be modified.


Mr. Hughes: Well are you can use that pole pod…

Mr. Hickey: Oh, yes.

Mr. Hughes: …for one of the legs foundation and put another one in and make the goalpost type and then you have an opportunity and we do as well and if you are in the business, in the signs, as well as I know what goes on you can hang a service on there and each sign can have a separate meter. Mr. Rones was concerned about who was going to pay for the signs and the electric. That is a quick resolution and it gives us a lot of lateral movement for the future. A building that size, in the Town, right there at that intersection it’s going to have some more opportunities if its not for your own company it will be for someone else.

Mr. Rones: That would be acceptable.

Mr. Hickey: That would be very acceptable and we can actually use the current foundation it can be modified.

Mr. Hughes: So you are going to re-feed the conduit that feeds the pod and reuse that pod in some fashion?

Mr. Hickey: Oh yes.

Mr. Hughes: In both locations?

Mr. Hickey: Oh yes, absolutely the power is already there.

Mr. Hughes: And on the building what are you going to do on that?

Mr. Hickey: We are hanging internally illuminated wall signs up there and it would be like a feed that comes from inside the building through the sign.

Mr. Hughes: Will they replace the signs that are there now or are they going to be in addition to the signs that are there now?

Mr. Hickey: They are replacing the signs that used to be there. There is currently nothing there.

Mr. Donovan: Do you know what the total square footage of the signs that used to be there was? I am talking about building façade signs.

Mr. Hickey: I’d have to add the two together.

Mr. Rones: They are the same as the signs we have proposed. We are using basically the same footprint. 

Mr. Donovan: And Joe (Mattina) do we know how those signs got up? Was there a Code change at some point in time that changed the allowable square footage for signs?

Mr. Mattina: There wasn’t a Code change; it was just done. It was done in the mid 80’s early 90’s.

Mr. Donovan: Went home on Friday and there was no sign, came back on Monday and there they were?

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. 

Mr. Hickey: 511 sq. ft. in answer to question on the two-façade signs.

Mr. Donovan: And that’s essentially what you are proposing now, the same?  

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Obviously that’s larger than what’s allowed. So maybe you could articulate some reasons why you need larger signs?

Mr. Rones: Well these signs are basically dwarfed by the other commercial signs in the area. The signs in the shopping center across Route 17K are all substantially larger. Right on the corner there is a Sunoco Gas Station basically the entire property is a sign. Across the street on Route 300 there is a shopping center about to go up, virtually all of those signs are larger. There is a Nissan automobile dealership diagonally across from the property, those signs are well, as I would say practically the whole building is a sign but certainly they are very, very substantially larger. So in order to have some visibility for what is our headquarters office we need that signage at that location.

Mr. Hickey: If I could add to that, if you take a look at the two of the drawings that are submitted with their logo given the viewing distance from the highways that they are read from that is an appropriate size to make it legible.

Mr. Donovan: In terms of the square footage of the side of the building they are sitting if you could give the Board some idea? You are not taking up the entire side of the building correct? 

Mr. Rones: Oh, no.

Mr. Hickey: Certainly I can pass this drawing around again I believe you have it already and I didn’t form those calculations. I do not have that information handy but I think the drawing is to scale. It shows what is proposed.

Mr. Rones: There is Kleinfelder sign, which is no longer on the building that is in that photo.

Mr. Hickey: Yes.  

Mr. Hughes: I think the problem that created your condition here is that you don’t have the frontage on the highways that Mr. Rones suggested was comparable to the Lowe’s and the Nissan and across the highway. Because your lot is L-shaped and its an odd fitting in that corner of the neighborhood.

Mr. Rones: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: It goes behind the gas station and you have a short distance on 300 and a very short distance on 17K and that’s what limits the amount of footage that you are allowed without variances.

Mr. Hickey: Right and that’s what creates the hardship. Yes, thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Well I don’t know if I would call it a hardship.

Mr. Rones: Circumstance, it creates the circumstance.

Mr. Manley: For the record, the Kleinfelder sign is no longer there.

Mr. Donovan: He told us that already.

Mr. Manley: However, that sign was put up without a variance.

Mr. Hickey: That’s correct.

Mr. Rones: That’s why it’s not there anymore.

Mr. Hickey: That square footage was not included into our calculations.

Mr. Manley: Any future person that puts a sign up though also has to include, just so you know, your square footage in it if they go to put up a sign. 

Mr. Hickey: Right, just like we’ve included the Time Warner, yes.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I would again go back to that goalpost type of a setup rather than the single pole to insure both your expansion or other tenants in there and I think I’d be more apt to approve a project of that nature than a single pole where you are limited.

Mr. Rones: We’d consent to that condition.

Mr. Hickey: Yes, we are willing to accept that as a condition or modify the application at this time whatever is simpler for you.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Manley: If you could take a look at this Fleet Bank sign, I don’t want to put words in 

Mr. Hughes’ mouth but if you had a sign like this say, right? That had your company’s information on it and then see how these are separated with smaller, if the subtenants underneath that had like Time Warner, if you had Smith Barney underneath here is that something that would be doable?

Mr. Hickey: Yes. Do you mind if I draw on this for a second?

Mr. Manley: Sure, fire away.

Mr. Hickey: I think what we would like to do is this…(drawing on paper)…so that gives the maximum flexibility in the future as opposed to bringing them underneath like that.

Mr. Manley: Well, not like that.

Mr. Hickey: Well I think this gives the…

Mr. Manley: I see, you are saying make it wider here?

Mr. Hickey: If I make it wider this gives the greatest flexibility for future uses.

Mr. Manley: For that, but for actual visual I mean now we are going to the architectural visual appearance of the sign from a distance?

Mr. Hickey: I think it’s very architecturally pleasing. This is actually the way the vast majority of their signage is done across their footprint with the legs on the outside of the sign like that. Then that gives you a 12 ft space of which future tenants…if you limit the 3 or 4 feet then it becomes a visibility issue and isn’t really usable space for future tenants if you are too narrow in the center.

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: I would suggest you would take a look at the one that Target uses right down the street from there. It’s the same kind that I am referring to.

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: Right, yes. May I borrow this for a second?

Mr. Manley: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: I could tell by your description.

Mr. Hickey: Yes, this is what…

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: …that’s what you are taking about?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I do have one thing I’d like to comment. On your report that you read from the County, it’s the letter “l” (l/c L) and “m” not “1” (one) and “m” so as not to confuse the public or someone else that might follow up on that. 

Mr. Donovan: I distinctly heard her say “L”.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: My hearing must be going.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Mr. Rones: Thank you very much.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

 (Time Noted – 8:35 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007       (Resumption for decision: 10:00 PM)

FINKELSTEIN & PARTNERS 

1279 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-15.1) IB ZONE

Applicant is area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one freestanding sign per lot to erect signs.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Finkelstein & Partners, 1279 Route 300 seeking area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one free-standing sign per lot to erect signs. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Ms. Drake: I think because we’ve talked about the two pole signs I would like to make a recommendation I would like to see a rendering of what the two pole sign would look like versus what we have submitted to us as a one pole sign.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to request a condition on that too that the applicant look at the reduction of the goal post at this point and leave the same size signs on the building in consideration of the possibility of a bigger sign later on or a tenant sign to be consistent with the building. In other words, the size of the signs that you are asking for on the building we’re fine with but we would like you to reduce the pylon sign a little bit and provide the goal post so that if there are other tenants or you want to have a bigger sign later on, suppose Howard buys the building and wants to take the whole thing over then he can make his sign on the pylon bigger because there will only be one sign in it. But in the meantime, if the building is occupied by other tenants there is a spot on the goal post sign to add additional signage without coming back for more pylon signs. 

Mr. Hickey: Do you have a (inaudible) sign in mind?

Mr. Hughes: Something similar to what Target has on 17K right down the street. 

Mr. Hickey: As you can guess, obviously I’m from out of Town.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: Do you happen to know the size of the Target sign?

Mr. Hughes: I can get you a diagram for it if you want.

Mr. Hickey: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I could get it over to you and you could send it out.

Mr. Manley: I’m sure they have on file over at the Code Compliance because that had to go through approval with Code Compliance so they probably even maybe give you some numbers on it. 

Mr. Mattina: I have his fax number on his card. I can fax him a copy of it if you want.

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Could you take care of that Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: My guess is the answer to our site is (inaudible) you want?

Mr. Hughes: Oh yes, but I’m saying the style of it.

Mr. Donovan: I think his question is ‘how much do you want me to reduce the pylon sign by?’


Mr. Hickey: Right.

Mr. Hughes: To leave enough room there to substantiate the possible tenants that may exist there and if they do take the whole building over then you can make (inaudible) sign bigger.

Mr. Hickey: O.K. There is room underneath to add them in there already, that’s really what you are looking for.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: So, the sign is basically the same you are just looking for room underneath?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Hickey: So the size is O.K., it’s the space underneath.

Mr. Manley: Well I think too in lieu of going with the large signs on the building scaling the pylon signs, I mean you really don’t need as big a sign on the ground as you would if you have got these big signs on the building, that’s going to…

Mr. Hickey: I am just trying to gauge the reduction you want to instead of trying to guess.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Reduction on the pylons only or you’re saying reductions on the building?

Mr. Manley: No, no, the building is fine.

Mr. Hughes: It’s just on the pylons?

Mr. Manley: What you’re saying on the pylons because you really don’t need as big a sign on the ground if you’ve got a huge sign up on the building. That’s going to draw more attention probably than the ground.

Mr. Hughes: Everybody clear with that?

Mr. Hickey: Just a percentage would be great.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Hickey: So, right now there is 72 sq ft are you looking for 60?

Mr. Hughes: Yes that would be nice.

Mr. Donovan: Let’s go flip a coin; we could 20% or 40%.

Mr. Hickey: All right, it’s 60 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: That would be great.

Mr. Hickey:  Just so that I’m clear on the last point, do we need to come back for this?

Chairperson Cardone: No we will just reserve the decision until we see the rendering.

Mr. Hickey: O.K. We can send the rendering to?

Mr. Hughes: If you came back with him, he’ll send them over to us.

Mr. Manley: I guess the rendering when you do it should be in…architecturally pleasing with respect to the building so that it blends with the building. Yes?

Mr. Hickey: Is there something not pleasing about the drawings submitted now?

Mr. Hughes: No.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Hughes: As long as it’s consistent with the commercial type of sign pylon.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Hickey: Great.  

(Time Noted – 10:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007       (Time Noted - 8:35 PM)

J.VANDEMARK/T.MANCINELLI

WILLIAMS AVENUE







(101-5-6) R-2 ZONE


Applicant is seeking an area variance for the lot depth and the front yard setback to build a new 1-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant J. Vandemark, T. Mancinelli.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t see them.

Ms. Gennarelli: I don’t see them either.

Chairperson Cardone: Is anyone here for that application?

(No Response)

Mr. Donovan: Just take a look at the minutes of the last meeting I asked them if they had any activity…if you recall, this is the one where we wanted to know if they could push the house back so could minimize the front yard variance…if you had anything different to get it to the Board two weeks prior to the meeting. Mr. Mancinelli said ‘O.K., thank you’ and that was it. They knew they were supposed to be back tonight. It’s pretty clear from the minutes. I don’t know if we want to do what we did with the other application that is on tonight? And write to them and indicate that it is going to be held open? That is up to the Board.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s January 24th.

Mr. Donovan: You could close it and make a decision?

Mr. Hughes: We had up to 62 days to make a decision and we kept the hearing open, is that right?

Mr. Donovan: Well granted, 62 days from the close of the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: We haven’t closed the Public Hearing yet. 

Mr. Donovan: So, you could either close it, decide tonight or communicate with them or keep it open and indicate to them that they were invited back with any changes that they may have proposed.

Mr. Hughes: They must have a complete change of heart, I would guess or...

Mr. Donovan: Or they maybe they want to have their application withdrawn which would be the other as opposed to have an adverse ruling.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: It is my feeling I would like to keep it open and have a letter sent to them and offer them the alternatives.

Mr. Manley: If they wish to withdraw.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to keep the Public Hearing open till January with them being sent a letter.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

 (Time Noted – 8:37 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 7:31 PM) 


SEMBLER COMPANY 


82 NORTH PLANK ROAD







(77-2-5 & 77-2-3) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the required number of parking space for the construction of a bank and a pharmacy.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant The Sembler Company.

Mr. Wilson: Good evening, Members of the Board, my name is Neil Wilson. I am the attorney for the applicant, the Sembler Company. We last appeared before you at your November 20th meeting and there were a number of questions that the Board had posed to us relative to the parking count. If you recall, of course, under your Code a total of 114 parking spaces is ordinarily required for the amount of total square footage of retail space between the pharmacy and the bank. We are requesting a variance to allow 82 parking spaces to be constructed instead. One of the other items that the Board had requested was to have the Town’s traffic consultant weigh in on a review of the calculation of parking that had been provided by our traffic consultant. Specifically Creighton Manning Engineering, Kenneth Werstead, PE had submitted a letter dated November 30th in which he reviewed the parking calculations that had been prepared by Philip Grealy of John Collins Engineers and just to summarize he concurred that the amount of parking that we are proposing would be…to just to quote his letter, ‘will reasonably accommodate the proposed pharmacy and the bank’. That letter was transmitted directly to the Board. I had also provided a copy of it in my transmittal to the Board dated December 14th, which you should have received all, last week. We went a little bit further and took a look at some of the other projects that had been, in fact, built by the Sembler Company. It took us a little while to go through and survey some of the various sites where pharmacies had been built and specifically what we were looking for were similar situations where we had a pharmacy and a bank on a standard (inaudible) lot. And out of the several hundreds of sites that we reviewed we in fact came up with four and those are summarized in my letter of December 14th. The parking ratios that we are looking at range from a low of 3.7 to a high 5.6 parking spaces per thousand gross lease able area. What we are proposing is a ratio of 4.5 spaces per thousand square feet so we’re basically kind of right in the mid range if you will. One of the things that had also been discussed at the last meeting and specifically raised by Mr. Manley had to do with the ratio of the handicap space. The question specifically was when we reduced the amount of proposed parking did we also reduce the amount…the number of handicap spaces. So in other words there is a sliding scale formula. I am going to ask Tim O’Brien to address this in just a second. Under the ADA there’s a sliding scale that defines and sets forth the number of handicap parking spaces that you are required to have based upon your gross square footage. One of the things that Tim is going to handout is actually the applicable pages from the ADA which sets forth the sliding scale so that you can see that the five handicap parking spaces that we are showing on the plan are the same number that would ordinarily be required were we to build the complete 114 parking spaces. 

Mr. Manley: So under your current request it would reduce by one?

Mr. Wilson: No.

Mr. O’Brien: It would reduce by one that is correct however we are not reducing it.

Mr. Manley: O.K. But that’s…but under the allowable ADA standard?

Mr. Wilson: Right, to drop…if we had gone to 82, we could have dropped by one space we in fact did not do that.

Mr. Manley: O.K. So noted.

Mr. Hughes: I believe in your narrative from the last meeting a question was asked about whether these were full blown van accessible and you said that they were? 

Mr. Wilson: They are.

Mr. Hughes: They are still going to continue to stay that way?  

Mr. Wilson: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: When we had our meeting last time, memory tells me that we had asked Mr. Greeley to forward to us, at least two weeks in advance, where he referenced his bibliography from and we haven’t received that package yet. And, I am very disappointed that we didn’t get that but instead we got a 4-page letter from you that had reiterated everything that we have already discussed. Now I don’t know whether you think that this Board is asleep here but we asked him and he said that he would get it to us in a couple of days and it would be two weeks ahead of time and we haven’t received it yet. I am very disappointed.

Mr. Wilson: Well certainly in terms of the bibliography and I do apologize, we will provide that information to you.

Mr. Hughes: Well, it’s right in the minutes I don’t know why you didn’t.

Mr. Wilson: Well, I understand. But the question, in terms of the bibliography and the discussions of last meeting about the parking variance really go to whether or not in fact we are providing the appropriate number of parking space for the intended use and that is exactly what the variance is for. I do apologize in terms of not getting the bibliography to you but the relative standard and I will let Mr. Greeley address this, the traffic engineers are using and the Town’s traffic engineer in fact utilized are the same. The ITE manuals…

Mr. Hughes: We’ve read all that stuff as well.

Mr. Wilson: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: It is my habit of doing business that when someone says they are going to provide something and they don’t that’s not a very good indication from where I sit.

Mr. Greeley: Mr. Hughes, Philip Greeley speaking, I apologize. The Town’s consultant I thought had provided it because he actually referenced the document, the ITE document. I do have copies I can leave it…it was just…a…we had got a copy of his letter; we thought that that was attached to his letter because he references the ITE Parking Generation Manual. I have copies I can leave with the Board but that’s the reason why…

Mr. Hughes: (inaudible) right now.

Mr. Greeley: …that’s the reason why we didn’t make an additional submission because it was requested that the Town’s consultant review it and he referenced that material in his letter of November 30th.

Mr. Manley: Well, Mr. Greeley if I could ask with regard to the reduction in the size of the requested parking spaces? The number that we get is based on the New York State, correct? Through the State of New York, the Building Department uses the numbers that are established by the…what?

Mr. Greeley: I believe your…the number of spaces that you require are set by the Town.

Mr. Manley: By the Town, correct. 

Mr. Greeley: …because different Towns have different ratios.

Mr. Manley: Right, but...

Mr. Greeley: For example, most Towns have a ratio of 5 spaces per thousand square feet. So your Town has the 6.67 I think is what it equates to per thousand square feet.

Mr. Manley: But we get our numbers or we’ve adopted that through the State is that…?

Mr. Greeley: I don’t believe it’s necessarily through the State data.  

Mr. Manley: Building Code? Through the State Building Code?

Mr. Donovan: I believe it’s our Town’s Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Greeley: It’s the Zoning Ordinance that sets that.

Mr. Donovan:  The Zoning Ordinance sets that part.

Mr. Greeley: The history of that I don’t know but the published data as I said in many towns their requirements are 5 spaces per thousand some even 4 spaces per thousand.

Mr. Manley: I did review the letter that Mr. Wilson prepared for us with the comparables. One of the things that kind of maybe comparing apples and oranges here, three of the comparables are out of the State of Florida. Now last time I checked it doesn’t snow in Florida.

Mr. Greeley: Right.

Mr. Manley: Here we get sometimes an over abundance of snow. My guess would be that when it snows here we are going to lose some parking spaces.

Mr. Greeley: Correct.

Mr. Manley: How many parking spaces do you feel in a heavy snowstorm where like what happened a couple of weeks ago would we lose based on snow piles?

Mr. Greeley: Well first of all in Mr. Wilson’s letter with the numbers he is referring to, just so it’s clear for the Board Members, those are the numbers that are provided on those sites. That doesn’t reflect the numbers that are actually used. O.K.? Which is important because I think you know he gave you a range of the different ratios that are provided in each of those locations so. So number one it’s not what actual usage is o.k.?  I think that’s where the ITE is better in terms of giving a better understanding of the actual uses, usage. In terms of the number of spaces that we lose, lost on a snowstorm on a site like this…we have areas where some snow would be plowed to. Because if you look at the plan there’s area for plowing but typically on a site like this you may lose 5 spaces I would say roughly.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Could you point out where those piles would be?

Mr. O’Brien: We have areas along this area in the back where they pile snow. Usually a store of this nature they try to avoid piling the snow in the front of the store or a main parking area where your majority of your customers would park. They would try to get the snow to the back of the site and that’s why if you look at this site you’ll notice that we’ve got trees and shrubbery around the parking lot and we’ve left areas in the back open for piling of the snow.

Mr. Manley: And there are parking spaces in the back? If I can see this.

Mr. O’Brien: There’s parking spaces here, there’s spaces right here along the property line but we’ve left open along here so they can put the snow back in here and also behind these spaces.

Mr. Hughes: Where is your loading dock for the…?

Mr. O’Brien: There is a loading dock right here.

Mr. Hughes: And that is going to service both the bank and the pharmacy?

Mr. O’Brien: The bank doesn’t really have much of a loading requirement.

Mr. Hughes: And how long is that loading dock area?

Mr. O’Brien: How long is it?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. O’Brien: Scaling this real quickly back from here to here it’s probably about 40 feet. 

Mr. Hughes: And what are you going to do with that 70-foot truck in front of that drive-thru?

Mr. O’Brien: The trucks are, deliveries are off peak hours. They schedule it around the drive-thru hours and they also schedule it around the time of the store and also the truck is only there for about an hour or two, an hour to two hours and it’s only once a week.

Mr. Hughes: Now I read in your report here that there is a truck once a week. That’s kind of hard for me to believe that a 15,000 foot square store would only need a delivery of a 53 ft long by 7 by 8 gives you…2500 cubic feet of materials are coming in there once a week to service a 15,000 foot store?

Mr. O’Brien: The material coming in is, they have a small storage room, a lot of the material is actually stored in the store on the shelves. What happens is as any, look at most of these stores as things are sold it’s so computerized that they…when something is sold from the store they know it’s sold and they have it scheduled to be restocked and the restocking is actually done through the truck. There is a little area in the store for storage. Also another thing that is not know about most of these stores is a lot of those smaller box trucks deliver through the front door where they pull up in the parking lot, unload and they are gone in 15 minutes. Where they stock the shelves, Coke, Pepsi, those type of things, just like any convenience store, any small store where you see them unloading that’s it.

Mr. Hughes: Now I have some more questions. The parking lot closest to the curb cut on 32, 300 there.

Mr. O’Brien: Right here?  

Mr. Hughes: Are you suggesting in any way that a tractor-trailer would come in that entrance?

Mr. O’Brien: A tractor-trailer can come in this entrance around back into here and out. In the plan package that was submitted to the Planning Board and is part of their review, they reviewed the truck ingress and egress. In fact, I misspoke its actually this light and out.

Mr. Hughes: And the canopies and the drive-in has all been considered in that?

Mr. O’Brien: It’s all been considered. It’s been considered and actually the canopy was raised for that one issue.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. and then what about the right turn out only coming out of there?

Mr. O’Brien: It’s not a right turn only its full ingress egress.

Mr. Hughes: Well I understand that the way it’s drawn. What I am asking for is a right out only for the tractor-trailers because how are you going to get them to come out left across through two lanes of traffic onto the light?

Mr. O’Brien: That’s probably been stated in the traffic report and everything, the stacking and everything. This curb cut is put as far away from the intersection as possible to allow for that ingress egress there. Otherwise that would have been restricted by the DOT in the part of the site-plan permitting process.

Mr. Hughes: And coming out of the other driveway?

Mr. O’Brien: Excuse me?

Mr. Hughes: What about coming out of the other driveway?

Mr. O’Brien: The truck is coming in this way and out this way.

Mr. Hughes: What about if a guy was to do it the other way around?

Mr. O’Brien: He is not going to take a left out of here. If he’s coming out he is going to back out to Route 32.

Mr. Hughes: Well what I am suggesting is over there to make it right out as well.

Mr. O’Brien: The way the plan is set up the trucks are not going to be coming in this way or out this way. If they do it, they are not going to be going left out; they are going to have to go right out, because this is a highway. Otherwise they are going to end up in a residential neighborhood with a tractor-trailer. They are not going to do that.

Mr. Hughes: I read another excerpt in here that one of your people quoted saying that the reason that they don’t want to put more parking spaces back there to sink into the buffer zone because of the houses. There are no houses on that side of Stanley Place.

Mr. O’Brien: They all face the site, which is probably even worse.

Mr. Hughes: But your road is 50 feet wide and the house is 20 feet back that’s 70 feet right there.

Mr. O’Brien: Right but then it is your Town requirement that a 60-foot buffer be required and that was I guess there were several public…

Mr. Hughes: Well what about a certain number of parking spaces required?

Mr. O’Brien: There was a public hearing that required that, several public hearings held with the landscape buffer issues and that was decided by the Town Board and the public.

And we are trying to abide by that.

Mr. Hughes: By the Planning Board or the Town Board?

Mr. O’Brien: Wasn’t that the Town Board? The landscape buffer, the buffer zone?

Chairperson Cardone: That would be the Planning Board.

Mr. O’Brien: The Planning Boards and the buffers.

Mr. Wilson: There had been a code change earlier this year relative to the buffer areas along the back and…

Mr. Hughes: We are familiar.

Mr. Wilson: We had been modifying our plan to accommodate it was kind of a bit of a moving target for us. But the plan that you see complies with the buffer and the landscape requirements that we spent a lot of time at the Planning Board. I understand what your question is in terms of providing additional parking in this area back here but the simple fact is that we’ve shown mathematically and empirically based upon the other similarly situated stores that the additional parking, the 114 spaces simply are not needed. So the question gets to be, it’s a trade off if you are telling me that we need to put parking spaces back in here. I am going to tell you great I’ve got a different kind of a variance. Frankly I don’t want to have to argue for that variance.

Mr. Hughes: What kind of a different argument would you have?

Mr. Wilson: Well I don’t have to develop it. The simple fact is that this is a business zone abutting against a residential district. The Town has already gone through an extensive process, actually the amendment to the landscape and the buffer section occurred this year but actually has a history that goes back at least two years from what I could figure and its all about preservation protecting the residential neighborhood. Whether or not there are houses that butt up against their property is irrelevant in terms of the amendments that have been adopted. It’s all about providing for screening and substantial landscape buffering. But again it goes back to the issue do we in fact, in fact need the additional parking? We don’t. We’ve shown you that.

Mr. Hughes: Now I have a question for you.

Mr. Wilson: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Suppose your tenant gets in there or I’m guessing it’s a tenant. You are BL Properties?

Mr. Wilson: Well BL is the engineer. But yes, my client is the tenant…the landlord.

Mr. Hughes: And the pharmacy and the bank doesn’t work out and now the Town is left with a hangover from this because there isn’t enough parking spaces for another type of store to go in that same building and there isn’t enough sufficient parking?

Mr. Wilson: Well I guess my answer is we can concoct any number of scenarios in which somebody else at a future point in time to try to make use of particular for a use that required more parking than the uses that are proposed and are in fact allowed within the business zone. We can stand here all night and debate that. This application is about a redevelopment of an existing commercial site for which we basically have no curb controls, its sort of a wild open, very little landscaping along Noel Drive and along North Plank Road. There is in fact an existing vegetative area along Noel Drive, I’m sorry along Stanley Place that we are maintaining. That is also in fact being enhanced by additional plantings and the adherence to the additional standards, the new standards that have recently…recently adopted by the Town of Newburgh. We’ve spent a lot of time coming up with a site plan that complies in every respect except for the parking. But again we go back to the issue we simply don’t need for these two uses on this particular site 114 spaces. It’s simply not necessary. 

Mr. Hughes: You are convinced. I am not. I don’t see how you can expect this Board to give you what is almost a 35% reduction in parking. If this place goes belly up now we have two buildings on the site that can’t be used. I don’t want to get into it because you and I could go on, you’d have a beard like mine before we were done. There is a lot of stuff that your guys said selectively that I’m not satisfied with and I don’t believe it.

Mr. Wilson: Well, Mr. Hughes we obviously heard your comments at the public hearing on the site plan and again, the issue before this Board is parking variance. It hasn’t anything to do with the movement of the trucks through the site, questions about snow storage are valid certainly we understand those. When they are phrased in terms of potential loss, temporary loss of parking spaces that may occur during snow removal operations we believe that we’ve shown through the numbers, your Town’s traffic consultant concurs with those numbers. As far as the other site plan issues that you raised at the public hearing those are matters that are in front of the Planning Board. The Planning Board needs to make the decisions on them. We in fact spent a lot of time with the Planning Board coming up with this entire scheme for the plantings along the three roadways including the substantial landscape buffer in the back. The simple fact remains and I did state this at the November 20th meeting and I reiterated in my letter, Walgreen’s Pharmacy and Key Bank are national businesses. If in fact they believe that this plan did not have enough parking on site to support their uses we would never have been authorized to make this application and we would have had to have come up with some other plan to accommodate the uses or found another site. 

Mr. Hughes: Can you give us some representative examples that exist in the State of New York instead of something 1500 miles south?

Mr. Wilson: Well I did actually one of the examples...

Mr. Manley: Stony Point. 

Mr. Wilson: And again we attempted to come up with an apples to apples comparison of sites with both the pharmacy and a bank and we do have one at Stony Point, Route 9W in Stony Point. Now there the parking ratio is 5.6 spaces per thousand, which is still less than the 6.3 spaces per thousand that otherwise would be required under your Code. But again I was informed that the site there is much larger and simply accommodated the additional parking without the need for a variance. That was the information that I had. 

Mr. Hughes: Now we’re right back to that.

Mr. Manley: The issue, I think really the issue is that if the size of the lot was large enough you wouldn’t even be here. Correct?

Mr. Wilson: I am not certain to be honest with you. Again the amount of parking that we are proposing is appropriate for the use. I suspect that we would be having a different discussion if the site were larger about banking. In other words you know show that can build it but don’t actually build the additional 30 odd spaces. You know landscape it instead. But that’s a different conversation. The simple fact is that what we have shown you is through empirical evidence the essence some of the, at least three of the examples are located in the State of Florida. But retail is retail and the banking business is the same whether it’s Florida or its in New York in terms of the kinds of traffic that’s being generated and where they tend to locate these kinds of uses. I’ll let Phil Greeley describe for you the methodologies in the ITE Manual which, by which case they actually compile empirical evidence of a whole bunch of different range of land uses from across the nation to come up with sort of these composite rates that frankly all of the, all of us use in terms of developing these kinds of sites. 

Mr. Manley: That’s not necessary for me. I think I’ve gotten enough there. I want to kind of take this in a different direction and I had an opportunity to review the minutes of the Planning Board meeting that you were at in order to go over the parking situation. So I did review that and I just have a couple of questions with regard to that and then I’ll be done. For the record, could you tell us who Mr. Pierides is?

Mr. Wilson: Mr. Pierides, he is actually one of the engineers at BL Companies. He was covering that night because Mr. O’Brien had a conflict.

Mr. Manley: O.K. A resident had questioned, or I guess was asking questions surrounding the traffic and the parking and one of the questions came and asked Mr. Pierides ‘if he had physically been there on the site and observed the curb cuts’ that were referenced earlier ‘and are you familiar with the project’? And, he indicated yes and then he backed it with ‘I mean I haven’t’. So I am gathering from that that he hasn’t actually been to or seen the project. Would that be correct?  

Mr. Wilson: I don’t believe he actually had a chance to visit the site. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Wilson: He was familiar certainly with proposed site plan.

Mr. Manley: The resident then followed up with the question: ‘have you been there physically out there to see what goes on during the day?’ meaning in the area with the traffic. ‘I haven’t actually sat there and actually watched’. So the data that they are getting isn’t from actually a field visit but from …

Mr. Wilson: Let me back up a second, I am going to let Phil talk to this. Emile Pierides is an engineer with BL Companies they are responsible for the site design. The traffic end of it, the observations of turning movements and all of that was sub’d out to John Collins Engineers of which Phil Greeley is a principal.

Mr. Greeley: Mr. Manley, I’ve been to the site numerous times in the area have done many studies along Gidney Avenue, Gardnertown, Route 32, Chestnut, all the way down to 84. I think the site engineer at that meeting was really referring to on site conditions in terms of the plan design. We did the observation in terms of the traffic numbers, in terms of the observations of the problems of the existing curb cuts on Route 32 and we’re the ones that initially recommended to close those and to move the main access away from the intersection so that it could function. Also made the recommendations on the upgrading of Noel Drive in terms of the approach to 32 and the signal modifications there also.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Greeley: So I think those were really are observations that are referenced in the traffic study.

Mr. Manley: Another resident had some concerns, at the meeting; from the minutes that I looked with regard to I guess the width of the driveway also truck traffic on Noel Drive with regard to the vehicles being over weight and the road having weight restrictions. Have you looked into that at all and have you…?

Mr. Greeley: Yeah, in terms of no truck traffic is to go beyond this site into the residential area and the section of Noel Drive from the access out to 32 in conjunction with this project and there is an Orange County Trust building that is proposed across the street. That’s going to be upgraded to accommodate the traffic on this section. There will be no truck traffic or any traffic that will continue on Noel Drive and at the Planning Board meeting there were discussions about traffic through the neighborhood and accessing to get over to Chestnut Lane but there will be no truck traffic allowed as there is not today allowed in Noel Drive further to the east of this location.

Mr. Manley: O.K. and I guess just my last question is, with regard to the variance and requesting I calculated it out its actually right around 30% reduction in the number of spaces…what is the actual hardship presented against the applicant in order for the Board to grant relief under the Code?

Mr. Donovan: Before Mr. Wilson jumps in, actually if you look at his last letter, his letter is accurate to the extent the law in New York was for a number of years you had to show a hardship and was based upon a case law. The State Legislature, and I am old enough now to say recently when it was more than 10 years ago, preempted the field and in terms of an area variance it’s not necessary to show an unnecessary hardship. It’s a balancing test. You balance the benefit to the applicant if the variance is received versus the detriment to the neighbors and you run through the five factors. I think were outlined in Mr. Wilson’s but if read the decisions that I give on behalf of the translation for the Board every month it weighs those factors. It’s adverse impact on the neighborhood, adverse environmental physical impact, substantiality of the variance requested, was the variance self-created, those are the factors that you need to weigh to determine benefit versus detriment. So the test of an unnecessary hardship was done away with by the Legislature a number of years ago, even though it still remains in our Town Code. It really shouldn’t be there.

Mr. Manley: So if we were to kind of switch that around and say what do you feel is not creating a detriment? What do you feel? Can you kind of tell me from your perspective what you feel based on the five tests that are required, where you meet those limits? Not being, specifically not being excessive, how do feel that, how do you sell this as not being an excessive request of the 30%. And I know you are going to go back to the traffic, you know, the traffic counts and the examples that you’ve provided. Is that where you are going with that?

Mr. Wilson: When you take a look, as Mr. Donovan has pointed out, it’s a balancing; it’s a balancing of the detriment to the neighborhood or the community versus the benefit to be gained by the applicant. In this particular case, we think that the equities kind of, they don’t simply fall in, totally in favor of the applicant and they don’t represent certainly a detriment to the neighborhood. The question that is before the Board is the potential effect if you will and that’s what the discourse is really about, if there is insufficient parking on the site is there going to be an adverse impact on the neighborhood? Is there a detriment to the neighborhood? We have shown you empirically, we’ve shown you through the calculation, the Town’s traffic engineer has supported our calculations to say that we in fact have and are providing sufficient parking on the site for these two uses. In return what the Town is getting is frankly a clean up of what is an existing largely abandoned commercial site. The landscape buffers that you see here along North Plank Road, Route 32 and on Noel Drive don’t exist today. The landscape buffering along the backside here at Stanley Place largely exists but will be maintained and protected and in fact enhanced under this plan. In terms of the substantiality, 30%? Again it’s a weigh. Is that a large number, in my estimation based upon the benefit to be gained by a clean up of the site and keep in mind that this project is running in tandem with the Orange County Trust project immediately south of us in which we have and will be required to enter into a cooperative arrangement with Orange County Trust to pay for a whole host of off site improvements including drainage improvements that run down and onto the west. When you weigh each of the factors, the five factors, in my estimation certainly you come down in favor of supporting the application on the basis of there is no detriment or detrimental impact or adverse impact likely to occur on the neighborhood as a result of the granting of the variances. Why? Because the site is simply capable and the uses are appropriate to the site of accommodating the 82 parking spaces and the 82 parking spaces proposed are sufficient in fact for the uses. In return of course, you end up with a…largely a clean up of what is now a mostly vacant, kind of defunct commercial site.

Mr. Manley: 30% is definitely the number you need? 82 spaces is your very absolute…?

Mr. Wilson: That is what we are proposing. Yes. We’re not coming back.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Would your company consider making another lane of traffic there and put less shrubs on the bottom at the parking lot level and put more stuff at the top…?

Mr. Wilson: Sorry, which road are we on?

Mr. Hughes: Back by Stanley Place where you show… 

Mr. Wilson: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …from where the drive-in windows are behind the pharmacy you have a big round green tree there…

Mr. Wilson: This one here?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Wilson: Yup.

Mr. Hughes: Suppose you took vegetation and put it up at the top to buffer the neighborhood up at the top of the mountain there and made another lane of traffic there where cars can park tandem and then if you have a snow plowing problem or you have truck problems coming in and out of there later on you have a provision for it already?

Mr. Wilson: Are you saying along in here?

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Wilson: That’s still within the 60-foot buffer.

Mr. Hughes: I understand that. But there are no houses on this side of Stanley Place.

Mr. Wilson: I understand that.

Mr. Hughes: And, because of the elevation. Have you been out to the site?

Mr. Wilson: Yes, I have.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so, then you understand that if you are standing in the parking lot and there is 25 feet up to Stanley Place at least, you are not going to offend anybody with what is going on down there.

Mr. Wilson: Well again you’re putting us in the position of having to request a variance to encroach in what is otherwise a required buffer area.

Mr. Hughes: I’d rather give you a variance to that than to that many less parking spaces without that.  

Mr. Wilson: Well, again getting back to my statement of the 20th, the November 20th meeting and again tonight, reiterated, stated in my letter of December 14th...if the two tenants proposed for this site had any idea that the amount of parking, the combined parking of 82 spaces was insufficient for their combined operations this application would never have been submitted to you. 

Mr. Hughes: What about ten years down the road from now when they disappear? Or twenty years down the road?

Mr. Wilson: Again, you and I can speculate all night long about the ‘what ifs’ but we’re talking about this application.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to say one other thing. You say, ‘in fact’ when it’s a prospectus, you are estimating what’s going to go on here. You’ve told the Board on more than one occasion that these are the numbers ‘in fact’. This is theoretical this is not in fact. You don’t know that your calculations are going to be sufficient to serve this site and I don’t know either. And that’s why I am reluctant to go along with it.

Mr. Wilson: Well actually based upon empirical studies, of similar operations…

Mr. Hughes: In theory.

Mr. Wilson: It’s not theory, sir. It’s…

Mr. Hughes: It’s fact?

Mr. Wilson: It’s fact. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: I am not convinced.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Yes?

Mr. Dobrzynski: My name is Douglas Dobrzynski, 8 Roy Place, Newburgh, NY. I think we are missing one big factor here. We keep calling this a pharmacy and that is a very small portion of it. The pharmacy is going to be may 10% of the store that they want to put up. They are going to sell everything under the sun that they can get away with which is going to be food, it’s going to be cameras, it’s going to you name it, it’s going to be there. It’s going to create two problems, which everybody said well, you know, there is nothing we can do about Noel Drive. Well, there is a weight limit restriction there. So, no trucks can come in and out even though they said well we’re going to do what not what we have to do but we’ll get them only to go one-way, that was never cleared up by the Planning Board. O.K.? That’s one. This is going to be like an Odd Lot and it’s going to require a lot of parking and it’s going a 24-hour thing. I have been into other stores that they have and maybe when it opens up first it’s, it’s nice and after that it goes down hill. I live right behind this. I don’t want something that people are going to be able to come out onto Noel Drive, go up Noel Drive to get to Chestnut. There’s a lot of kids that live in there. I have one there. My neighbor has four. In that little area there is over thirty-five kids. Everybody has pushed that aside even at the Planning Board. Yeah, yeah, yeah, nobody is going to go that way. The fact is that they do. O.K.? It’s not a pharmacy too. That’s what we have to understand. That’s a very small portion of what they are proposing here. Every time they get up they say the pharmacy. We have three pharmacies within a half-mile radius of the intersection of Noel Drive and Route 32. Personally, I don’t think we need another one. That is not for me to decide though. But this project as they are trying to push it down our throat, they don’t answer questions, they don’t give letters back. I am not the oldest guy in the world but I am old enough to know that if you slight me once you are going to slight me twice and that means there’s something funny going on. Kansas doesn’t work here. They’ve got to come up with the answers. He keeps saying he refers to Florida about parking. I don’t care about Florida for parking. I honestly don’t. I am looking at this project in a way that they’re not looking at it. They want their store there. They are here for money. That’s it. I don’t mind a building going in as long as it’s built right, as long as the parking is adequate and as long as I don’t hear ‘nobody goes up Noel Drive’ that’s all your hearing from them all of the time ‘nobody goes up Noel Drive’. In the Planning Board we said, ‘let’s have a sign put there that says no left turns up onto Noel Drive’ ‘You don’t have to do that’ this comes from these gentlemen. I don’t trust a word that they’re saying. They couldn’t send in a letter that was asked for. What are they going to do next? What is the next step that they are not going to comply with? This has to be stopped. This has to be looked at very carefully now. We get snows here that I don’t know if they can imagine. You wind up with three feet of snow you’re not losing five parking places, number one. You are going to lose a heck of a lot more than that. I’d like to know how they did this traffic study. Living there I have never seen a counter whether it be on 32 or Noel Drive, never once. And I don’t know how they’re coming up with these numbers to say it can handle the traffic. Two o’clock in the morning it can handle the traffic. What about daytime? People go to the bank, now that bank lot gets full fast. I don’t understand these numbers that they are throwing out here and calling it a fact. They have to be able to prove to everybody, not just the Board, but the residents that live there that what they’re planning is going to work. Now that also built on a filled in lake. Now the water run off that they’re talking about is going to go into a creek about a half-mile down that has to be addressed. Are we going to flood that area out now when we get our rains? I don’t understand what we’re doing. Somewhere I’m missing a major point of this whole project where they are not able to answer these questions. It’s going to affect this Town and it’s going to affect the neighborhood around it greatly and until they can actually come in with this information and have the people here that did it and don’t tell us we stood there and counted cars because nobody is going to do that. I want to see hard numbers. And, I think this Board here has to say ‘put the hard numbers on the table; let’s take a look at them’. Other than that, this has to be stopped. We’re going nowhere with this and it’s going to hurt the area behind it where I live and where there is about one hundred homes. That’s all I have to say for now. But there is one thing. Everything is a ‘fact’ coming from these people, nothing substantiates it and that has to be looked at. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other questions or comments from the public?  Yes.

Mr. Wilson: Just a…I would like to reply to a couple of the comments we just heard from Mr. Dobinski?

Mr. Dobrzynski: Dobrzynski.

Mr. Wilson: Dobrzynski, thank you. The pharmacy will not in fact be a 24-hour operation. That was established actually at the Planning Board. I don’t think we had actually talked about it here but it is not a 24-hour operation. The ATM at the bank, of course, is a 24-hour operation so that’s the only aspect at this site that would be open literally on a 24/7 basis. In terms of the questions of the downstream drainage, I spoke earlier about a cooperative agreement with Orange County Trust immediately to our south. I didn’t go at length about what those improvements are but both sides of the road will have not only sidewalks but there is a realignment of this existing intersection here at Noel Drive and Route 32. There is an existing catch basin and I probably ought to turn it over to the engineer but I’m on a roll here that catches the water and redirects it down to the other side of the road. There are improvements to the existing pipe system apparently the pipes that are in there are undersized. I think they are what are they 12 inch pipes?

Mr. O’Brien: 12 and 15 inch (Inaudible)  

Mr. Wilson: Yeah.

Mr. O’Brien: What is happening is downstream further there is two dual catch basins located right on the corner here. And supposedly they backed up. I’ve been out there at rainstorms, I haven’t seen it back up but I understand it does at certain storm events. As part of the site, where down stream probably a half a block down stream there’s several pipes that kind of crisscross the road down here and then go into the stream we will replace as part of this project with Orange County Trust we are replacing those pipes. We are installing larger pipes. Additionally, each of our storm water systems for this project and that other project both have been reviewed by the Town’s consultant engineers and they meet DEC requirements for storm water quality and quantity and for the runoff. This particular site we are installing a sand filter for treatment of the water or for treating the storm water and we are also retaining it for a period of time and slowly discharging it. So what happens now is the majority of this water goes straight into the drainage system. It’s not treated. It’s not retained or slowed down and it’s creating a problem downstream and flooding. The improvements made to this site and the  (inaudible) that we are adding to the site is actually reducing the amount of runoff and we are controlling and we are treating it.

Mr. Hughes: Where is the retention area?

Mr. O’Brien: We have a sand filter in our parking lot.  

Mr. Hughes: Underneath?

Mr. O’Brien: Underneath our parking lot.

Mr. Wilson: With respect to the comment or the questioning about the traffic counts and how it was conducted there were, in fact, manual counts literally people standing in the field conduct those counts and I’d like to have Phil Greeley just describe the methodology used.

Mr. Greeley: Phil Greeley again. The traffic study that was prepared for this site as part of the Planning Board review included both data from the New York State Department of Transportation for the Route 32 corridor that includes machine counts but when we do a traffic study we physically go out to the site and do manual counts because we need to know where people are turning, what’s going on and to be honest with you, the way this site exists today and a lot of time when you do a traffic study you are doing it on a virgin site. This site is developed, you have the bank, you had the liquor store, you had Freight Liquidators there and it was a free for all in terms of the curb cut on 32 was a continuous curb cut, movements in and out uncontrolled, even on Noel Drive the same thing. In terms of the actual traffic numbers and turning movements that’s what we use to come up with recommendations to improve traffic, to define driveways, to control movements. I think in terms of the comments at the Planning Board about not allowing traffic on Noel Drive, I think that’s a possibility. There could be a no left turn sign for traffic exiting from this site going up Noel Drive. There was a question of does the neighborhood not want to have the convenience to be able to go there? That could be a recommendation from this Board to the Planning Board. I believe the Planning Board is still considering that, you know at the public hearing there were comments made about that and you know from our standpoint we don’t want traffic to go that way other than the people in the neighborhood. We don’t need it and it could be very easily done so I think that’s something we could live by. The other thing in terms of traffic improvements in this area and again it wasn’t really discussed with this Board but as part of the Planning Board process the intersection of Gidney Avenue and Gardnertown Road which just down the street here from McDonald’s and you go down the hill it’s a problem intersection and improvements have been identified at that intersection and as part of the Planning Board process this application as well as Orange County Trust has to put money towards improving that intersection. So in addition to the drainage improvements, the localized improvements here on site in terms of driveways, there is a significant contribution that’s being made to advance an improvement to that intersection. So, there is another benefit in terms of traffic to the Town and it’s an existing problem. It’s not that this is going to cause it, it’s already there and they are going to help improve that situation. 

Mr. Hughes: Are timed traffic control lights included in that? 

Mr. Greeley: Ah, yes, at the intersection of Gidney and Gardnertown there will be a new traffic signal as part of the improvement at that intersection which would have the coordination with the intersection, with the signal at 32.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the light at Chestnut Lane and going out at 9W (32)?

Mr. Greeley: The only proposed change at this light here is the change to the controller, the light at Chestnut and the other lights along 32, the Department of Transportation is in process of replacing controllers throughout this region and as part of that is to interconnect the various signals. So, as part of this proposal the only change is to the controller but that would allow it to communicate with the signal at Chestnut and as I said there is communication going in at the Gidney Avenue intersection also. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Greeley, what class road is 32? Is it a D, F?

Mr. Greeley: A class? O.K. well, the class, a State highway in terms of volume is one thing, in terms of operation if you’re talking about a level of service operation?

Mr. Manley: Volume.

Mr. Greeley: O.K. That, the volume comes into the capacity of the roadway and if you look during peak hours, for example, this intersection today is classified as a D level of service. With the modifications we’re making, even though we’re adding some new traffic here, I mean the bank is already there but we’re adding traffic for the pharmacy, we will maintain that level of service and we’re actually going to improve it because we’re going to be improving the width of Noel Drive and we are improving the alignment by the widening that’s being done there.

Mr. Manley: So currently for volume it’s a class D road?

Mr. Greeley: A level of service. It’s the term class I am not sure what you are driving at but we classify the operation of an intersection or, you know, a corridor and in this case the intersection here operates at a level of service D. And it’s the same rating as in school. A is a great…

Mr. Hughes: What are the numbers that go with D?

Mr. Greeley: In terms of the delay? It’s an average vehicle delay in excess of 50 seconds during the peak hour, that’s for every vehicle so the average vehicle delay and that range goes up as high as 80 seconds, I’m sorry, the next level of service, level E which goes from 60 to 80 seconds and then beyond that would be the next level of service, so this is classified D. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you figure that the light in front of the Newburgh Mall and this light here and the one at Chestnut Lane will be timed to keep that traffic moving there better? 

Mr. Greeley: The Newburgh Mall? Oh, I’m sorry, the Mid Valley Mall you are talking about.

Mr. Hughes: Mid Valley Mall.

Mr. Greeley: You got me confused I’m think 300.

Mr. Hughes: I previously misspoke, I’m sorry. 

Mr. Greeley: The Mid Valley Mall, the distance between that and this signal I think is beyond where the State usually interconnects them. What they’ll do is what they call a time-based coordination. Here this and Chestnut would be more of a true interconnect.

Mr. Hughes: Then how come they are backed up to 9W from this intersection?

Mr. Greeley:  Today? Because of the way that the timing is set up and because of some of the problems that occur off the State highway on Gidney Avenue and Gardnertown.

Mr. Hughes: So they would have to do all four of those lights together to come out with a positive result?

Mr. Greeley: Well, even if you did just two of them you’re going to be better than it is today and if you do three it’s going to be even that much better. The other thing that’s been included in our traffic analysis which is not yet built but opposite Chestnut Lane there is a proposal for a development that was approved by the Planning Board and as part of that Route 32 is going to be widened at Chestnut Lane and that signal is going to be replaced. So that’s, but again that’s something that’s not really tied into us it’s another development but that traffic, if that development did get built and it’s traffic was on the road there’s other improvements that are being incorporated here. And, the last thing in terms of the parking and the traffic were reviewed by your consultants but also as part of the process here because we are on a State highway even though it’s an existing site that had a use on it, that’s you know functioning traffic we have to get a Permit from the New York State Department of Transportation for these improvements and we’ve gotten conceptual approval and as we finish with the Planning Board we would get our Permit to do that work. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll move to close the hearing.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Wilson: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 9:30 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007       (Resumption for decision: 10:05 PM)

SEMBLER COMPANY 


82 NORTH PLANK ROAD







(77-2-5 & 77-2-3) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the required number of parking spaces for the construction of a bank and a pharmacy.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant was Sembler Company, 88 North Plank Road, seeking an area variance for the required number of parking spaces for the construction of a bank and a pharmacy. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think we’ve had plenty of discussion on this application.

Mr. Manley: I guess I’ll go first. I really am trying to grapple with again the decision of the amount of the reduction; I think we calculate it as right around 30%. I just…30% is a lot for that…I think for that particular lot. I can live with something less than that I just…30% is, in my opinion, a lot in comparison to everything else. They have submitted some documentation; I don’t feel 100% comfortable with it. 

Mr. Hughes: I agree with my colleague Mr. Manley. It’s just asking too much. It’s way over the border of precedential in it’s nature and with the snows that we get here and the traffic and the problems that could exist with plowing and safety and everything else, I am just not comfortable with it it’s way too much.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other discussion? Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

(No Response)

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Manley: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake:

Mr. Donovan: So, an aye vote is to disapprove the application.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct.

Mr. Donovan: It’s always tough to be the first person voting.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Gennarelli:


                      Brenda Drake: Yes



                      Ruth Eaton: No

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: No

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Donovan: The motion is carried four to two. Yes.

(Time Noted – 10:09 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007               (Time Noted – 9:30 PM) 


FRED DEPEW – DEPEW OIL

5182 ROUTE 9W, NBGH







(43-5-41.2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an erected sign. Signs are required to be located at least 15 feet from the street line.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Fred Depew, Depew Oil.

Mr. Depew: Hi, I’ve applied for a Permit for a variance for distance from the road on a sign and I understand it went to the Orange County for approval or disapproval and I’m here for an answer. 

Chairperson Cardone: Actually there was another issue also but I will read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning – 

Based on our review of the material submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with section 239 paragraphs l (L) and m (M) of the General Municipal Law and do not have any significant intercommunity or countywide considerations to bring to your attention. We recommend Local Determination of the matter. 

I think one of the issues, one of the reasons that we held it open was a statement was made at our initial meeting regarding other signs that were on the property. And we were told that those signs would be taken down the next day. I along with several other Members pass the site daily and I have not seen those signs taken down. And I think there was a concern on the part of several Members of the Board that those signs were not taken down. Am I correct in that?

Mr. Manley: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. I think there was another issue there to with the Building Department where they didn’t inspect the sign when they mounted it. And there was quite a discussion about the footage that it was hanging over. We were told it was 20 inches and it turned out to be 7 feet. I don’t know if that has ever been resolved.

Mr. Mattina: Right. An inspection was never done, if you approve this, we will have them expose the footings, verify the footings are done and as for the overhang part my calculations were correct. It’s from the center of the pole you have a 4-foot overhang and he went from the property line not street line.    

Mr. Hughes: So you’re talking about NYS DOT’s curb cut?

Mr. Mattina: I have to look at the map.

Mr. Donovan: I think he is talking about the property line to the nearest portion of the sign.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: The property lines is a foot and a half back from the DOT right of way and the sign is hanging over 4 feet or 7 feet?

Mr. Mattina: I’ll have to look at it to refresh my memory.

Chairperson Cardone: While they are looking at that could you please address the other signs that are on site?

Mr. Depew: I was not at the last meeting. I’ve had some health problems, some issues. I’m not aware of …the only thing we had out there was a Help Wanted sign and a propane, there’s one of those swinging signs.

Ms. Eaton: There was one of those portable signs.

Mr. Depew: Yes, the portable that’s what I am talking about.

Ms. Eaton: Is it still there?

Mr. Hughes: There was some canvass signs too hanging on an oil tank.

Mr. Depew: That’s on the next piece of property. I own that property but it’s separate. 

Chairperson Cardone:  I was referring to the portable sign and also the small sign, the Help Wanted sign which actually when you leave the property it does block your view somewhat of the traffic on 9W.

Mr. Depew: I can remove it; again I wasn’t aware of it.

Chairperson Cardone: These are the two (showing Mr. Depew a picture); I think you know which two they are.

Mr. Depew: Yes, they are the only two signs out there.

Chairperson Cardone:  This one here and there’s the Help Wanted. 

Mr. Depew: Oh, O.K. this one you’re talking about.

Chairperson Cardone:  Right, that one.

Mr. Depew: O.K. that’s not a problem.

Chairperson Cardone: Those two.

Mr. Depew: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Back in October, David Depew was here and he said he would remove the sign the next day.

Mr. Depew: O.K. tomorrow is another day. I will be there. 

Chairperson Cardone: I could stop in to remind you.

Mr. Depew: It’s not necessary.   

Mr. Hughes: O.K. we found what we were looking for here.

Mr. Mattina: The center of the pole is 12 foot from the property line; you have a 4 foot protrusion from the center of the sign out that would leave 8 foot remaining, so they need a 7 foot variance. 

Mr. Hughes: What’s the date on that one?

Mr. Mattina: October 25th, ’07.

Mr. Hughes: This is November and there’s something in this that says something as well. Was David the one that was at both of these? Was David the one at both of these meetings or weren’t you at the first one? 

Mr. Depew: I was at the first one and then he was at the second.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. that’s the one that has the footings?

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: So is that still an issue that that thing is hanging over?

Mr. Mattina: Well, yes, the pole itself is only 12 foot from the property line and it comes back 4 foot towards the road so they still need a 7 foot variance.

Mr. Hughes: So is that the only thing we are here for now is that 7 foot variance?

Mr. Mattina: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: And is the Building Department O.K. with digging up the footing thing and inspecting that  (inaudible) with this process?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, if approved we’ll have an electrical inspection done and expose the footings.

Mr. Hughes: David didn’t know what we were getting at the last time here and I wasn’t quite sure either.

Mr. Depew: So, basically you are saying get those two signs out of there?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Depew: Yes?

Mr. Hughes: Part of it, yes.

Mr. Depew: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? Any questions or comments from the public? 

(No Response)

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Mr. Manley: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

(Time Noted – 9:35 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding any legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. In the interest of time, I would ask you to wait out in the hallway and we will call you back in a few minutes.                                                                (Time Noted – 9:36 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007       (Resumption for decision: 10:09 PM)

FRED DEPEW – DEPEW OIL

5182 ROUTE 9W, NBGH







(43-5-41.2)  B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an erected sign. Signs are required to be located at least 15 feet from the street line.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Fred Depew – Depew Oil, 5182 Route 9W, seeking an area variance for an erected sign. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think we’ve discussed this one quite a bit, he has agreed to remove the other signs. I make a motion to approve this variance. 

Mr. Donovan: Subject to removal of the other signs?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And we have to have our Building Department go out there and look at the footings.

Mr. Donovan: And compliance.

Mr. Kunkel: Second that motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

ABSENT:  John Mc Kelvey

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.     (Time Noted – 10:11 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 27, 2007

END OF MEETING 
                                            (Time Noted – 10:11 PM)



Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes from the last meeting; do we have any additions, corrections, deletions? Do I have a motion to approve the minutes? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to approve the minutes from the last meeting.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: I also have a letter here from Supervisor Wayne Booth. It is addressed to all Department Heads. Please respond by January 2nd, 2008 to Charlene Black if you would like to attend the Association of Towns, bus transportation will be supplied. So if any one is…

Mr. Hughes: Do they provide accommodations overnight or is it back and forth on the bus?

Chairperson Cardone: It sounds like it’s back and forth on the bus. It says bus transportation will be provided.

Mr. Donovan: Not like the good ole days.

Mr. Kunkel: I think you’d better ask for clarification on that, that wording sounds to me like they are just repeating the procedure of past years that means overnight stay is permissible when they say bus transportation will be provided, they mean transportation to New York from Town Hall location here on Sunday morning and then transportation back from the hotel to the Town Hall on Wednesday afternoon.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Kunkel: I believe that’s what they mean.

Chairperson Cardone: I’ll get that clarification. I know that there has been at least one year that there was not overnight and you went down daily. I’ll find out and of course everything has to be within our budget. Any other business? Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Mr. Hughes: So moved. 

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is adjourned until January 24th.

 PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL 

JAMES MANLEY     

DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ABSENT:  JOHN MC KELVEY

(Time Noted – 10:15 PM)

